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01 
ECSECC’S GENERAL INFORMATION

 
REGISTERED NAME         Eastern Cape Socio-Economic Consultative Council

REGISTRATION NUMBER   1999/024315/08 

  

PHYSICAL ADDRESS        12 Gloucester Road

                                              Vincent

                                            East London

      5217

POSTAL ADDRESS      Postnet Vincent

      Private Bag X 9063

                                     Suite No. 302

                                      Vincent 

      5247

TELEPHONE NUMBER      (043) 701 3400

FAX NUMBER      (043) 701 3415

EMAIL ADDRESS      info@ecsecc.org

WEBSITE ADDRESS     www.ecsecc.org

EXTERNAL AUDITORS    The Auditor-General of South Africa   

BANKERS      First National Bank  

BOARD SECRETARY    Ms Nozuko Somniso
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02 
ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome

ANDM Alfred Nzo District Municipality

ART Anti-Retroviral Treatment

CGE Computational General Equilibrium

CoGTA Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs

CSF Community Society Forum

CSIR Council for Scientific & Industrial Research

DEDEAT Department of Economic Development, 
Environmental Affairs & Tourism

DHET Department of Higher Education and Training

DHS Department of Human Settlements

DoE Department of Education

DDP District Development Plan

DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration

DRDAR Department of Rural Development and Agrarian 
Reform

DSD Department of Social Development

DTPS Department of Telecommunications and Postal 
Services

EC Eastern Cape 

ECAC Eastern Cape AIDS Council

ECDC Eastern Cape Development Corporation

ECDoH Eastern Cape Department of Health

EC CoGTA Eastern Cape Department of Co-operative 
Governance and Traditional Affairs

ECIP Eastern Cape Infrastructure Plan

ECNGOC Eastern Cape Non-Governmental Organisation 
Coalition

ECSA Engineering Council of South Africa

ECSECC Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council

EMM Enoch Mgijima Municipality

EXCO Executive Committee

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GIS Geographic Information Systems

GIZ Gesellschaft  für Internationale Zusammenarbeit

GRAP General Recognised Accounting Practices

HCT HIV Counselling and Testing

HIV Human Immunodeficiency Virus

HRDC Human Resource Development Council

HRD Human Resource Development

ICT Information and Communication Technology

IDP Integrated Development Plan

LED Local Economic Development

LM Local Municipality

MLM Makana Local Municipality

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MTSF Medium Term Strategic Framework

NDP National Development Plan

ORTDM O.R. Tambo District Municipality

OTP Office of the Premier

PDP Provincial Development Plan

PICC Presidential Infrastructure Co-ordinating 
Commission

PFMA Public Finance Management Act 

PSP Provincial Strategic Plan 

RAFI Rural Agro-Industries and Financial Initiative

RDP Reconstruction and Development Programme

RRCC Rapid Response Co-ordinating Committee

SA South Africa

SAM Social Accounting Matrix

SALGA South African Local Government Agency

SANAC South African National AIDS Council

SAPS South African Police Service

SANRAL South African National Roads Agency

SDBIP Service Delivery Budget Improvement Plan

SETA Sector and Education Training and Authority

SIP Strategic Infrastructure Project

SLA Service Level Agreement

SPLUMA Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act

STEM Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics

STI Sexual Transmitted Infection

TB Tuberculosis

TCTA Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority

TVET Technical Vocational Education and Training

UNFPA United Nations Family and Population Fund

USAASA Universal Service and Access Agency of South 
Africa

WAD World AIDS Day

YOLO You Only Live Once



2017 | 2018 ECSECC Annual Report8

03 
FOREWORD BY THE 
CHAIRPERSON

This annual report presents financial, 
governance and human resource 
information as well as performance 
against the objectives outlined in 
the Annual Plan for ECSECC for the 
2017/18 Financial Year. 

ECSECC’s mandate of stakeholder co-ordination 
and multi-stakeholder policy-making stems from the 
realisation that government cannot defeat poverty, 
unemployment and inequality on its own, but needs 
to build deliberate and active partnerships to achieve 
prioritised development outcomes. The vision of 
ECSECC is a poverty-free Eastern Cape where everyone 
benefits equitably from the economy and realises their 
human potential. The mission of ECSECC is to be a 
multi-stakeholder centre of excellence in applied policy 
research, development planning and facilitation.

ECSECC’s 2019 Strategic Plan has four strategic goals for 
the five-year cycle of planning: 
• To facilitate effective and efficient administration and 

governance.

• To support development policy, strategy and planning 
in the Eastern Cape province. 

• To be a socio-economic knowledge hub for the 
Eastern Cape province. 

• To create platforms for multi-stakeholder participation 
and partnerships. 

First row: Mr Z. Tini, Mr L. Holbrook, Mr L. Jack, Mr X. Malamlela
Second row: Mr D. Claassen, Rooks Moodley, Mr. P Ndendela

Not in picture: MEC X Nqatha, Prof N Monde, Mr M Matutu, Mr M Koyo, Mr M Toyis, Mr G Mpumza
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In this report, we present ECSECC’s key outputs and 
outcomes towards achieving these goals. I’d like to 
highlight the following achievements: 
• Stakeholder mobilisation, planning and resource 

leverage for the nascent ocean economy sector. 

• Development of 2030 Vision District Development 
Plan for O.R. Tambo District,  2030 Local Development 
Plan for Nyandeni Municipality and the draft 2030 
District Development Plan for Alfred Nzo District. 

• Through a partnership with South African National 
Roads Agency (SANRAL), the organisation set 
up a forum of national and provincial government 
departments and municipalities with a vision to 
maximise the socio-economic impact of the N2 
Wild Coast road in the Wild Coast Corridor. ECSECC 
arranges and facilitates a quarterly briefing, thereby 
deriving collective feedback on the project and saving 
time and resources.  

• The Eastern Cape Infrastructure Plan (ECIP) developed 
by ECSECC as per the request from the Office of the 
Premier (OTP) was approved by the Eastern Cape 
Executive Council in April 2017. 

• Revival of the Local Government Co-ordination and 
Integration Framework and its approval by EXCO. 
ECSECC has also provided ongoing support to the 
IDP phased-in approach. This has included facilitation 
of provincial workshops, review and development 
of a framework and associated tools. To take this 
work forward, ECSECC is currently negotiating a 
partnership agreement for the 2018/19 financial year.

• An Eastern Cape Provincial Implementation Plan 
(PIP) for HIV/AIDS, TB and STIs is in now place. The 
plan contains agreed provincial actions to be taken 
over the period 2017-2022, provincial targets and 
a Monitoring and Evaluation M&E framework. To 
ensure full alignment and implementation, Eastern 
Cape AIDS Council (ECAC) has ensured the PIP 
targets are included in relevant department’s annual 
performance plans; facilitated development of seven 
district implementation plans; and supported civil 
society sector plans through the now highly active 
civil society forum. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the former 
Chairperson of the Board of Directors, Mr Mlibo 
Qhoboshiyane for his leadership of the organisation 
in the year under year. I would also like to thank the 
Board of Directors of ECSECC and the independent 
committee members for their continued stewardship and 
commitment to the organisation. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors I would also like to 
thank the Premier and the administration of the Office of 
the Premier for their ongoing support. Further, I would like 
to thank the OTP Portfolio Committee for the strategic 
oversight they to provide. 

Lastly, the CEO, management and staff deserve a warm 
thanks for their hard work in achieving the objectives of 
ECSECC in a tough environment. 

Thank you!

 

________________

Mr Xolile Nqatha

Chairperson of the ECSECC Board

Date: 23 August 2018
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04 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

General financial review of ECSECC, 
outlook and plans

Spending trends of ECSECC                            
ECSECC has done well in terms of spending in the 
2017/18 financial year. Of the total revenue of R43 678 
000 budgeted for, ECSECC has spent R40 911 000, which 
amounts to 94% of total revenue. The unspent amount of 
R2 767 000 relates to commitments and third-party funds 
for work specified on the service level agreements with 
these third parties. For additional information, refer to 
note 12 of the ECSECC annual financial statements.

Requests for roll over of funds
A roll over application has been lodged with the 
Provincial Treasury. ECSECC has asked to roll over its full 
cash balance as at 31 March 2018, which amounts to 
R3 369 830.

Supply chain management
ECSECC prides itself on its compliant supply chain 
management systems, processes and practices. There 
have been no significant issues identified by our internal 
assurance providers. This is a result of a robust system 
of internal controls and a culture of accountability and 
integrity advocated by the entity. ECSECC always follows 
due process and there have consequently been no 
unsolicited bid proposals during this financial period.

Previous year’s findings
There were no significant matters raised by the Auditor-
General in the previous financial year.

Performance Highlights 
Overall, ECSECC achieved 100% of its targets for the 
financial year. The following are some of the performance 
highlights per programme. 

Programme 1: Operations, Finance, 
Corporate Services and Knowledge 
Management
• The governance and leadership of the organisation 

remains stable. The organisation met its statutory 
obligations of governance and reporting. The Board 
held its annual general meeting, its ordinary Board 
meetings and all committees of the Board met as per 
their schedule. 

•	 Continued provision of data and trend analysis to 
stakeholders and members of the public and the 
ECSECC website serves as a resource hub for 
stakeholders. I’d like to particularly note two projects 
in this regard. Firstly, the development of socio-
economic profiles for every single local, district and 
metropolitan municipality. Secondly, the development 
of the  Eastern Cape Social Accounting Matrix, an 
economy-wide impact assessment model for fiscal 
policy analysis, the building of an Eastern Cape 
Computational General Equilibrium (CGE) model and 
fiscal policy analysis carried out in collaboration with 
Provincial Treasury, the University of Fort Hare and 
Nelson Mandela University. 

Programme 2: Economic Governance
• Stakeholder mobilisation, planning and resource 

leverage for the nascent ocean economy sector, with 
a potential to unlock economic development along the 
Eastern Cape’s 800km coastline. 

• Inter-governmental liaison and facilitation for the Rural 
Agro-Industries and Financial Initiative (RAFI) where 
three districts have signed agreements with their 
government counterparts in the Province of Cordoba 
in Argentina for partnerships and investment in the 
agriculture sector. 

• Facilitation of engagement between business, 
municipal and provincial government leadership in 
Enoch Mgijima Municipality, Sunday River Valley 
Municipality and Buffalo City Municipality to address 
job protection and industry support. 

• Development of 2030 Vision District Development 
Plan for O.R. Tambo District,  2030 Local Development 
Plan for Nyandeni Municipality and the draft 2030 
District Development Plan for Alfred Nzo District. 
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Programme 3: Infrastructure Governance 
• Through a partnership with South Africa National 

Roads Agency (SANRAL) the organisation set up 
a forum of departments (national & provincial) and 
municipalities with a vision to maximise the socio-
economic impact of the N2 Wild Coast Road in the 
Wild Coast Corridor. ECSECC arranges and facilitates 
a joint quarterly briefing by SANRAL on the N2 Wild 
Coast Road.

• The Eastern Cape Infrastructure Plan developed by 
ECSECC as per the request from the Office of the 
Premier was approved by the Eastern Cape Executive 
Council in April 2017. With the support of ECSECC, 
the Office of the Premier is currently setting up 
the institutional arrangements that will drive the 
implementation of the ECIP.

• During 2017/18, ECSECC supported the Office of 
the Premier in setting up the Provincial Steering 
Committee for  Small Town Development. The 
organisations main achievement in support of 
this programme was to implement a capability 
development programme that targeted local 
economic development managers in the Alfred Nzo 
District, O.R. Tambo District and respective local 
municipalities. 

Programme 4: Strategic Governance 
Support 
• ECSECC provides facilitation support to provincial 

departments and public entities in order to ensure 
that strategic and annual plans of departments are 
developed in line with the National and Provincial 
Development Plan and provincial priorities. 

• ECSECC provides content and facilitation support to 
EC CoGTA. More specifically, this support included: 
Strategic planning for the Developmental Local 
Government Branch; Revival of the Local Government 
Co-ordination and Integration Framework and its 
approval by EXCO; and ongoing support to the IDP 
phased-in approach.

• To take this work forward, ECSECC is currently 
negotiating a partnership agreement for 2018/19 
financial year. 

Programme 5: Human Resource 
Development 
• Four council plenary meetings took place and the 

main theme for the council for the year under 
review was the #FeesMustFall campaign and the 
announcement of free higher education. 

• The past financial year has seen a great improvement 
of the functioning of HRD Council working groups. 
They have been strengthened by inviting strategic 
stakeholder participation. For example, in November 
2017 a new partnership with the Engineering Council 
of South Africa (ECSA) was established. 

Programme 6: Eastern Cape AIDS Council 
• The Eastern Cape AIDS Council remained functional 

despite ongoing funding challenges.

• An Eastern Cape Provincial Implementation Plan 
on HIV/AIDS is in place. The plan contains agreed 
provincial actions to be taken over the period 2017-
2022 to achieve the targets set by South African 
National AIDS Council (SANAC), provincial targets and 
M&E framework. 

• ECAC, the national and provincial Departments of 
Social Development and other stakeholders in the 
province hosted a summit to develop strategies to 
strengthen the provision of services to children. The 
summit was held in May 2017 and developed an 
intervention plan for comprehensive services to the 
estimated 134 000 children affected by HIV/AIDS in 
the Eastern Cape province. 

• The country adopted the 90/90/90 strategy as 
proposed by UNAIDS in 2016. ECAC plays a critical 
role in mobilising partners to respond to the strategy. 
In this regard, the province of the Eastern Cape again 
met its nationally determined target of 2 million 
people tested for HIV in the province.

• Young women continue to be a target population for 
HIV prevention work, as HIV prevalence and incidence 
rates remain high. A young women social lab was 
established to track progress on implementation of 
programmes targeted at young women in the Eastern 
Cape province. 

• ECAC continues to conduct research and programme 
evaluation and to ensure effective monitoring of the 
provincial response to the epidemic. 

As a stakeholder-based organisation, ECSECC’s work 
is carried out through strategic partnerships. The main 
partners are the controlling department, the Office of 
the Premier; the business, labour, higher education 
and the NGO sector that make up the Board; the South 
African Local Government Association (SALGA) and 
municipalities. ECSECC executes joint activities and 
projects with these partners. Other strategic partnerships 
included the German Development Agency, GIZ1, O.R. 
Tambo District Municipality, Nyandeni Local Municipality 
and Alfred Nzo District Municipality. 

Acknowledgements and appreciation 
I would like to thank the Chairperson and members of the 
Board of Directors and the Audit, Risk and ICT Committee 
of ECSECC for the support and leadership in the year 
under review. I thank employees and management for 
their contribution to the organisation and the strides we 
have made in our projects.

____________________

Mr Luvuyo Mosana

Chief Executive Officer 

ECSECC

Date: 23 August 2018

1  Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit.
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05
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY 
AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial statements submitted 
for audit by the Auditor-General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National 
Treasury in April 2017.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the General Recognised Accounting Practices 
(GRAP). The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the 
judgements made in this information.  

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human 
resources information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources 
information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 now submitted for 
auditing. 

___________________ 

Mr L. Mosana 

Chief Executive Officer

Date: 23 August 2018

___________________ 

MEC X. Nqatha

Chairperson of the Board

Date: 23 August 2018
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06
STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

VISION  
A POVERTY-FREE EASTERN CAPE WHERE EVERYONE BENEFITS EQUITABLY FROM 

THE ECONOMY AND REALISES THEIR HUMAN POTENTIAL.

MISSION  
TO BE A MULTI-STAKEHOLDER CENTRE OF EXCELLENCE IN APPLIED POLICY 

RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AND FACILITATION.

VALUES AND PRINCIPLES
Ecsecc continues to be driven by a combination of values that obtain from the liberation 

struggle in our country together with that of internationally competitive, cutting-edge 
socio-economic policy research institutes. Core values and principles include:

• NON-RACIALISM

• NON-SEXISM

• HUMAN DIGNITY

• DEMOCRACY

• ACCOUNTABILITY

• TRANSPARENCY

• PROFESSIONALISM

• INNOVATION

• ORGANISATIONAL LEARNING

• CONSTRUCTIVE CRITICISM

• CREATING THE CONDITIONS FOR PEOPLE TO 
REALISE THEIR FULL HUMAN POTENTIAL
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07
ECSECC MANDATE

ECSECC’s legislative mandate is derived from its status as a Schedule 3C Public Entity (in terms of the Public Finance 
Management Act, PFMA), as well as from its legal status as a non-profit company (NPC). 

In terms of its non-profit company status, ECSECC’s Memorandum and Articles of Association describe the main 
business of the company as being: “To play a consultative and advisory role (primarily socially and economically) to the 
Eastern Cape government.”  The Memorandum and Articles of Association outline the proceedings for annual general 
meetings, through which the Board of Directors is elected. 

ECSECC was established in April 1995 as a joint body of government, non-governmental institutions, labour, and 
business, at a summit for economic reconstruction and growth. ECSECC was expected to play a critical facilitation 
and development role to turn the Reconstruction and Development Programme (RDP) and provincial vision into reality. 
ECSECC’s founding document describes its functional mandate as that of fostering “a new relationship between the key 
stakeholders of the province. The labour movement, organised business, developmental non-governmental organisations 
and the government will be the key components of the council. Through this body the parties will strive to jointly 
promote the goals of economic growth and increased participation in decision-making on the implementation of the RDP.

The principal objective of the council will be to advise and assist the provincial government to achieve an integrated 
development strategy for the province and its constituent regions, in order to address the economic development of 
the province in terms of the RDP, and in particular the needs of the deprived communities and underdeveloped areas. 
The council will achieve this through a planning and development process which can give effect to both strategy and 
operational issues.”2

More specifically, the founding document sets out the following six goals for ECSECC: 
1. Advise and assist provincial government achieve an integrated development strategy for the province and its 

constituent regions, to address the economic development of the province, particularly the needs of deprived 
communities and underdeveloped areas;

2. Facilitate and co-ordinate the implementation of development programmes between all key stakeholders in the 
province of the Eastern Cape;

3. Facilitate development by providing an avenue for formal inputs into the policy-making process of government;
4. Support government in advancing efficient service delivery;
5. Empower communities and the grassroots structures of civil society to engage in development; and 
6. Assist the provincial government in developing policies and strategies that will facilitate the growth of the provincial 

economy.

2  ECSECC Founding Document (1995).
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08 
ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
Please see the organisational structure as per 31.03.2018 below.  

Programme 4
Strategic Governance 

Programme 3
Infrastructure 
Governance

Programme 2
Economic Governance  

Programme 5
HRD

Programme 6
HIV/AIDS

BAPHELELE MHLABA
Strategic Governance Support 
Programme Manager

CHRIS MOTSILILI
Inter-Governmental Coordinating and 
Planning Specialist 

VACANT
Development Planning 
Specialist 

LIBHONGO NTLOKONKULU  
Policy Researcher

LUNGISWA DUBULA  
Programme Secretary 

LUVUYO MOSANA
Economic Governance & 
HRD Programme Manager 

MIKE LEWIS
Development 
Economist

RUSSELL GRINKER
Development Facilitation 
Specialist

VACANT 
Economic Development 
Project Manager

VIWE BOOI
Programme 
Secretary

TEBOHO QHOLOSHA 
Sector 
Development 
Specialist 

NOMONDE HLATSHANENI
HRD Project Manager

NOYISE SEMANE 
Programme Secretary 

VUYISA DAYILE 
HIV/AIDS 
Program 
Manager 

NOPHIWE LUDIDI 
Prevention, 
Treatment, Care & 
Support Manager 

VACANT 
Impact 
Mitigation & 
Human Rights 
Manager

PELISA DANA 
 HIV Senior 
Research 

ZEODOR 
ARENDS 
M&E 
Specialist 

LULAMA 
MPAHLA  
Youth 
Coordinator 

BULELWA 
MHLONTLO 
Programme 
Secretary  

VACANT 
Communication 
Expert 

VACANT
Chief Executive Officer

NOZUKO SOMNISO
Executive Secretary and Chief Risk Officer 

Programme 1
Finance and Corporate 
Services

Programme 1B
Strategy, Operations 
and Knowledge 
Management

ANDISA ZINJA 
Chief Financial Officer 

NOKUZOLA MSHUMPELA
Supply Chain Manager

SIBONGILE NDUBAZA
Procurement Officer

JANICE EWERS
Finance Manager 

VELISWA TIMA        
Accounts Officer

CLINTON KRAUSE 
IT Manager 

LITHEMBA NTLOKONKULU      
IT Officer                                                                                                           

SINETHEMBA MQAYI 
IT Assistant 

NOTHANDO SHENXANE 
HR Manager 

NATASHA AUGUST  
Office and Operations 
Coordinator

ZUZEKA KWANGA 
HR Assistant 

NOMPUMELELO SITHOLE
Receptionist 

NOZUKO NKUNDLA 
Office Assistant 

NTOMBEBANDLA NTINI
General Assistant

VELISWA KANDILE
General Assistant

SIV HESJEDAL 
Chief Knowledge and 
Operations Officer  

SIVE KAMTE 
Quality Development 
Officer

NKOHLA VUYOLWETHU 
Statistical Economist 

BULELWA LUBELWANA
GIS Specialist 

KAMBALE KAVESE
Senior Economist

NOMABHELE MANDABA
Knowledge Management 
Coordinator 

ESETHU MAGWENTSHU 
Knowledge 
Management Assistant 
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01
AUDITOR’S REPORT: PRE-DETERMINED 
OBJECTIVES
The AGSA currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to provide reasonable 
assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives 
is included in the report to management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives 
heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report. Refer to page 73 
onwards of the Auditor’s Report, published as Financial Information. 

02
SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS

2.1 Performance Delivery Environment

The work of ECSECC and its partners in the period under review continued to focus on strategies and programmes to 
overcome challenges faced by people living in the former homeland areas, where over 60% of the provincial population 
still reside. The organisation also focussed on economic and governance issues in a number of small towns in the 
Eastern Cape, as well as the two metropolitan areas. 

While the historical backdrop for development and underdevelopment in the Eastern Cape remain the main cause of 
continued low rankings in terms of social and economic development, it is necessary to recognise that institutions of the 
state, private sector and civil society work in a dynamic, inter-connected and fast-changing environment. Globally, the 
current period is characterised by growing divides, increasing disruptions, higher levels of distrust, deepening divisions 
and greater diversity. Technology development is creating major opportunities for innovation and efficiency, as well as 
new challenges for governance. While there are regional and country specific conditions, broad global trends indicate 
that there are major changes in the status and expectations of individuals, changes in the global economy and changes 
in the physical environment that needs to be better understood. 

Research and publications on global mega-trends shaping governments’ agendas towards 20301 point to the following 
key points to consider: 
• Demographics: Higher life expectancy and falling birth rates are increasing the proportion of elderly people across 

the world, challenging the solvency of social welfare systems, including pensions and healthcare. Some regions are 
also facing the challenge of integrating large youth populations into saturated labour markets.Urbanisation: Almost 
two-thirds of the world’s population will reside in cities by 20502.The global urban population is projected to grow 
by 2.5 billion urban dwellers between 2014 and 2050, with nearly 90% of the increase concentrated in Asia and 
Africa. Urbanisation is creating significant opportunities for social and economic development and more sustainable 
living, but is also exerting pressure on infrastructure and resources, particularly energy.

• Enabling technology: Information and communications technology (ICT) has transformed society over the last 30 
years. A new wave of technological advances is now creating novel opportunities, while testing governments’ ability 
to harness their benefits and provide prudent oversight.

1  KPMG (2014) Future State 2030: The global megatrends shaping governments. https://assets.kpmg.com/content/dam/kpmg/pdf/2014/02/future-state-2030-v3.pdf
2  United Nations Population Division (2015) “World Urbanization Prospects – The 2014 Revision.” https://esa.un.org/unpd/wup/Publications/Files/WUP2014-Report.pdf 
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• Economic interconnectedness: The interconnected global economy will see a continued increase in the levels 
of international trade and capital flows, but unless international conventions can be strengthened, progress and 
optimum economic benefits may not be realised.

• Economic power shift: Emerging economies are lifting millions out of poverty while also exerting more influence in 
the global economy. With a rebalancing of global power, both international institutions and national governments will 
need a greater focus on maintaining their transparency and inclusiveness.

• Public debt: Public debt is expected to operate as a significant constraint on fiscal and policy options through to 
2030 and beyond. Governments’ ability to bring debt under control and find new ways of delivering public services 
will affect their capacity to respond to major social, economic and environmental challenges.

• Rise of the individual: Advances in global education, health and technology have helped empower individuals like 
never before, leading to increased demands for transparency and participation in government and public decision-
making. These changes will continue, and are ushering in a new era in human history in which, by 2022, more people 
will be middle class than poor3. A parallel trend, however is that income inequality has increased in nearly all world 
regions in recent decades, but at different speeds. In the sub-Saharan African region, however, income inequity has 
remained high, and stable, for the past two to three decades4. 

• Climate change: Rising greenhouse gas emissions are causing climate change and driving a complex mix of 
unpredictable changes to the environment while further taxing the resilience of natural and built systems. Achieving 
the right combination of adaptation and mitigation policies will be difficult for most governments.

• Resource stress: The combined pressures of population growth, economic growth and climate change will place 
increased stress on essential natural resources (including water, food, arable land and energy). These issues will 
place sustainable resource management at the centre of government agendas.

Research on trends for Africa towards 2035 shows that the continent is undergoing several major transitions, including 
demographic, economic, technological, urban and socio-political. These transitions are all connected, and together they 
are set to shape the future of the continent. An overall positive story is emerging from the research; however, this trend 
is neither stable nor even. The Institute for Security Studies’ African Futures5 report points to six key points: 

• On the current trajectory, extremely rapid population growth is set to compound poverty and lack of 
economic opportunities in sub-Saharan Africa.

• To improve resilience against external shocks, African countries need to diversify their economies, increase 
productivity, create jobs, and invest in critical infrastructure and the development of human capital.

• Improving connectivity infrastructure should not come at the cost of improving basic infrastructure.

• Urban governance needs to improve to manage rapid urbanisation and capitalise on it for economic 
development.

• Africa is likely to retain a high conflict burden. This requires continued investment in conflict prevention, 
control of arms, security-sector reform, the rule of law and regional forces.

• Democracy is likely to consolidate, and popular support will remain strong. Yet, democracy rests on fragile 
foundations, and continued support will be important. 

For South Africa, the National Development Plan (NDP) point towards these challenges and propose responses for the 
country. This has in turn been translated into the 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework for government. The 
year under review, however, was characterised by slow economic growth, recession, credit ratings downgrades, and 
heightened concerns about the governance and sustainability of key state-owned companies. Corruption, governance 
and accountability remained key issues for South Africans. Despite this, the country’s economic growth outlook has 
improved because of strong growth in the primary sector of the economy as well as a welcome recovery in investor 
sentiment and business confidence. National Treasury is anticipating growth of 1.5% in 2018, rising to 2.1% in 2020.

3  European Union Institute for Security Studies (2011) “Citizens in an Interconnected and Polycentric World” http://espas.eu/orbis/sites/default/files/espas_files/about/espas_report_ii_01_en.pdf 
4  World Inequality Lab (2018). The World Inequality Report 2018 http://wir2018.wid.world/executive-summary.html 
5  Institute for Security Studies (2017) Policy Brief: African futures key trends to 2035. https://issafrica.s3.amazonaws.com/site/uploads/policybrief105.pdf 
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Forces impacting on development in the Eastern Cape 
For the Eastern Cape, the forces impacting on provincial development over the next decade are likely to include the 
following six: the quality of governance; fiscal consolidation; population dynamics and urbanisation; our economic 
structure; technological change; and climate change. Below, we briefly outline each of these. 

The quality of governance

The policies and practices of the national government will be a key driving force for the province. Changes in Eastern 
Cape GDP closely track changes in South African GDP. National economic performance impacts directly on our province. 
The same applies to the various national government policies and a lot hinges for us on national government getting 
its policies and practices right, whether it is governance of state entities, macro-economic policy, industrial policy, land 
policy or social policy etc. 

The Eastern Cape has a large and complex public sector, comprising provincial departments and agencies, municipalities, 
national department activities in the province (such as police, courts and prisons) and state-owned enterprise activities 
(such as electricity, ports and roads). Public sector activity is a major economic driver in the province, and the main 
economic driver in the former homeland areas. While there are “pockets of excellence” within the public-sector system, 
there are serious issues around the poor general quality of public services and the lack of value for money from public-
sector expenditures. In some areas there are bloated bureaucracies and in others (such as doctors and nurses) people 
are over-worked. Interventions are under way to bring down the ratio of compensation of employees to the fiscus, with 
particular emphasis on scaling down administrative costs.

Eastern Cape Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs (EC CoGTA) notes that uneven performance 
continues to characterise municipalities and some municipalities continue to remain in a dire state despite repeated 
support and intervention measures. Challenges in municipalities relate to unfunded budgets, low revenue, with high 
debt rates and low collection rates, coupled with bloated organograms. Other challenges pertain to aging infrastructure, 
poor operations and maintenance. Municipalities continue to have planning challenges, with an inability to address 
historical spatial patterns and manage rapid urbanisation. 

State institutions, such as municipalities, health clinics and education institutions have been the site of social protest 
in the year under review. Social protest was taken in response to access to and quality of a range of services, service 
costs, access to land for housing, and corruption or political governance matters. Labour-related protest remains a 
feature, and the higher education sector saw prolonged periods of protest related to the cost of education. Communities 
have also been mobilised in the face of violence against women and children. Some small towns in the province also 
saw private business being the target of community protest. The ability of institutions and political and community 
leadership to engage with citizens remains important for the legitimacy of the state. 

Fiscal consolidation

Fiscal transfers from National Treasury to provincial government and municipalities are the main means of financing 
public expenditures in the province. Fiscal austerity could well last for the next five-year period (with national budget 
deficits projected over the medium term). Better public-sector management is consequently more urgent, with greater 
emphasis on shifting existing budget and personnel allocations. There should be more intelligent deployment of 
resources and better value is required from existing allocations.

Because less public sector investment is likely, it becomes yet more urgent to ensure an increase in private investment. 
In its work, ECSECC is recommending greater focus on a few absolute strategic priorities that also help to increase 
private investment. 
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Population dynamics and urbanisation

Between the 2011 Census and the 2016 Community Survey the total population of the Eastern Cape increased from 6.6 
million to 7 million, or 6.6%. This was slightly less than the South African (SA) population increase of 7.5%. The relatively 
slow growth of the Eastern Cape (EC) population is due to net out-migration rather than lower fertility rates or higher 
morbidity rates than the national average. StatsSA produces inter-provincial migration data based on stock data (the 
number of migrants at a point in time) and flow data (migration over a period of time). In terms of stock data there was 
almost no change between 2011 and 2016 with a net out-migration for EC in both years of 1.6 million. About 1.9 million 
people born in the EC lived outside the EC, and about 300 000 people living in the EC were born outside the province. 
Flow data from the 2017 mid-year population estimates is as follows: 

2006 to 2011 (000s of people) 2011 to 2016 (000s of people)
Out-migration flow 512 500

In-migration flow 154 174

Net out-migration flow 358 326

The EC has a much higher rate of out-migration (whether stock or flow) than other provinces. In addition to out-migration 
from the province there is also intra-provincial migration with people choosing to live in the metros, in the non-metro 
towns (and their peripheries) and along transport corridors. Deep rural areas are de-populating. These urbanisation trends 
are generally positive. The challenge is to grow our metros and towns in a well-managed way so that they are more able 
to attract and grow investment and enterprise.

In July 2017 StatsSA published the mid-year population estimate for 2017 which shows the population of our province 
to be 6.5 million. This fall in the estimated population by half a million people (or 7%) is due to adjustments to StatsSA’s 
method of population estimation, and would imply that our province had an almost zero population growth from 2011 to 
2017. This substantial downward adjustment has the potential to reduce equitable share transfers from National Treasury 
to the province very significantly, and is receiving attention by the province due to the already stressed fiscal situation 
outlined above. 

Trends in our total population numbers are moot and controversial. However, there are three main trends that are 
likely to continue: higher population growth in coastal areas (responding to better economic opportunities and new 
infrastructure); slower growth in the hinterland; and increasing urbanisation, including a growing population in small 
towns and urban peripheries
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Economic structure

The historic absence of significant mining activity in the Eastern Cape, and the creation of the former homelands as 
unproductive “labour reserves” are the main reasons that our provincial economy has tended to underperform compared 
to the national economy in terms of higher rates of poverty and unemployment. 

Generally, we have a rather small and slow-growing private sector with low levels of fixed investment. We have capital 
assets per capita that are about half the national average. We also have a small agricultural sector with declining levels 
of employment; partial de-industrialisation, particularly of labour-intensive, non-automotive manufacturing; and very low 
levels of productive economic activity in the former homelands.

In terms of economic structure, there are significant differences between the province and the country. The Eastern 
Cape has a very small primary sector (the smallest in South Africa both absolutely6 and as a percentage of provincial 
GDP), a medium-sized secondary sector and the largest tertiary services sector (as a percentage of GDP) in the country. 
Within the tertiary sector, the largest sub-sector is general government (including community services), which accounts 
for 20% of national GDP and contributes 34% of provincial gross geographic product.7 This underlines the province’s 
dependence on state spending (and social grants), and its high-risk exposure to future fiscal contractions. Local 
economies in the former homelands are particularly dependent on state spending and social grants. The impact at the 
national level of prolonged recession, low growth and low investment levels has been harsh. The Eastern Cape has been 
particularly badly affected (See figure 1).

Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
Eastern Cape and National Total, 2006 - 2021

FIGURE 1: Gross domestic product (GDP) - Eastern Cape and national total, 2006-2021 [average annual growth rate, constant 2010 prices]

Most economic activity in the province is in the two coastal metros. The relatively high population growth of several 
other coastal municipal areas also indicates the emergence of a predominantly coastal economy.

There has been increasing unemployment, including in our economic hubs (unemployment in Nelson Mandela Metro 
increased from 26.4% to 28.8% between 2006 and 2016). There are 781 000 unemployed people in the Eastern Cape 
and there was a net loss of 64 570 jobs between 2006 and 2016. Employment growth has been disappointing since 
adoption of the Provincial Development Plan (PDP) in 2014 and youth unemployment now stands at 39.1% (official 
definition) (see figure 2). 

Since the downturn, the Eastern Cape has lagged behind national trends in production, employment, education levels 
and population growth. This is reflected in the falling share of the Eastern Cape in the national economy on key measures 
(See figure 3). 

6  Eastern Cape primary sector GVA in 2010 was R4.3 billion. The second-smallest provincial primary sector GVA was the Western Cape’s, with R14.7 billion, more than three times larger.
7  The Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council database (Quantec).
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However, the Eastern Cape also possesses several developmental opportunities, including: 800 kilometres of coastline; 
under-utilised land and water for agricultural development; some good infrastructure: roads, three ports, and two IDZs; a 
manufacturing base, built around the automotive industry; four universities and eight Technical and Vocational Education 
and Training (TVET) colleges; talented, energetic, innovative and ethical people in all parts of society; and a large and 
resourced public sector system with potential to increase its value added to the province. Unlocking the potential of 
these opportunities remains the focus of the strategic work of ECSECC and our partners. 

Technological change

Technological change and the so-called fourth industrial revolution (digitisation, robotics etc.) is causing quite radical 
change in the nature of work globally. The Eastern Cape is undoubtedly impacted, particularly the auto sector. This has 
two major implications: firstly, in the need for greater resourcing and focus on innovation, particularly in applying existing 
global technologies to improvements in our socio-economic performance; secondly in terms of a significant increase 
in the supply of provincial Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) graduates in order to realise the 
benefits of innovation and technology transfer.

Climate change 

Climate change, resulting in more extreme weather patterns, is already impacting on the province. This could intensify 
over the next decade in the form of drought and flooding, leading to greater soil erosion, crop losses etc. Responses are 
required in the form of greater infrastructure resilience, innovative approaches to environmental protection and water 
planning and management. 

2.2 Organisational Environment

The continued existence of ECSECC allows the Premier to embed government’s vision among stakeholders and ensure 
championship of its vision and strategy beyond individual terms of government. ECSECC allows government and its 
major stakeholder constituencies a platform for joint decision-making, accountability, regular review and reflection. 
Further, ECSECC has the potential to be an agile agency that designs and drives strategic interventions to achieve 
national and provincial priorities. ECSECC’s strategic location at the centre of government and at the nexus of the 
state and its key stakeholders enables the organisation to mobilise networks, leverage resources and facilitate critical 
decision-making. Through strengthening its own capacity and facilitating new knowledge partnerships with universities 
and other knowledge centres, ECSECC strives to be a centre for knowledge-based provincial decision making. 

ECSECC enjoys a strong relationship with its controlling department, the OTP. ECSECC participates in strategic activities 
of the OTP and there is strong operational collaboration, particularly in the areas of integrated planning, local government 
support, human resource development and strategic economic interventions. 

The internal organisational environment remained stable, but constrained during this financial year. While the 
organisation has performed well in terms of its service delivery targets, the current period is marked by high pressure 
placed on current staff members, as that the organisation had a peak vacancy rate of 11% through the year. Posts 
remained unfilled for prolonged periods due to cost savings measures. Continuous investment in human resource 
capability and employee motivation is of utmost importance for an organisation that is human resource intensive. The 
organisation paid a limited performance bonus and offered a limited opportunity for staff bursaries. There was greater 
emphasis on internal training and peer learning, with the organisation increasing its pool of facilitators as a result. 

Funding constraints affect the funding of core programme activities, with resulting refocus of activities through the 
year. However, due to the multi-stakeholder nature of ECSECC’s mandate many of the organisations core projects are 
implemented in partnership with other institutions. In line with this, the organisation has been diversifying its funding 
sources through co-funding of priority projects. In the 2017/18 financial year, ECSECC had a funding agreement with 
GIZ for the work of the Eastern Cape AIDS Council. Multi-year service level agreements were also entered with O.R. 
Tambo District Municipality, Nyandeni Local Municipality and Alfred Nzo District Municipality, for co-funding of regional 
development planning and concomitant institutional support. 

While ECSECC continues to uphold high standards for governance and remains a compliant public entity, the 
organisation has been unable to make further strides in modernisation and upgrading of its ICT systems to support the 
core business as well as increasing efficiencies in administration. This will remain a key focus area going forward. 
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ECSECC is a knowledge organisation that develops strategic, actionable insights and solutions that are evidence-
based, catalytic and embedded through strategic social mobilisation, in keeping with the mandate and functions of 
the organisation. The excellence model, adopted in 2013 and depicted below, articulates how ECSECC delivers on its 
mandate. The core pillars describe the key elements of any project or intervention that ECSECC is involved in, from 
knowledge base through to social impact. Programme work is underpinned by a project management system as well 
as the principles of dynamic leadership, learning and innovation and strategic social mobilisation. For the 2017/18 year, 
ECSECC reviewed its performance indicators and now makes use of generic performance indicators across its main 
programmes which are aligned to the excellence model. 

2.3 Key policy developments and legislative changes

There were no major policy developments and legislative changes in the period under review.   

ECSECC EXCELLENCE MODEL

DYNAMIC LEADERSHIP AND CAPABLE HUMAN RESOURCE
LEARNING AND INNOVATION

STRATEGIC SOCIAL MOBILISATION
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2.4 Strategic Outcome-Oriented Goals

In the 2017/18 financial year, ECSECC operated with four inter-related five-year strategic goals as contained in its 
strategic plan which are:
1. To facilitate effective and efficient administration, governance and knowledge management.
2. To support development policy, strategy and planning in the Eastern Cape province.
3. To be a socio-economic knowledge hub for the Eastern Cape province.
4. To create platforms for multi-stakeholder participation and partnerships.

ECSECC operates the following programme structure: 

Programme 1: Operations, Finance, Corporate Services and Knowledge Management

The purpose of the programme is the development and implementation of effective and efficient ECSECC governance, 
finance, corporate services and operational systems and procedures. The programme seeks to ensure that ECSECC 
strengthens its position as a socio-economic knowledge hub for the province. 

Programme 2: Economic Governance

The aim of this programme is to support the development and implementation of economic policy and strategy to 
shift the economic development path of the Eastern Cape. The peripheral nature of our economy and its relative under-
performance are well understood. The programme seeks to set out clear priorities for the province over the planning 
period, and what can realistically be achieved to improve economic development in the province. 

Programme 3: Infrastructure Governance 

This programme aims to respond to ECSECC’s mandate to mobilise and co-ordinate stakeholders to drive a common 
provincial infrastructure agenda in the Eastern Cape. This is done to improve integration of infrastructure planning across 
sectors and spheres of government. 

Programme 4: Strategic Governance Support

The aim of this programme is to support the Office of the Premier, provincial government departments and local 
government in the field of development planning. This includes providing support to the centre of government in 
advancing a capable developmental state across spheres, buttressed by a strong integrating, planning and executing 
centre. This also includes transitioning provincial municipalities from the lower levels of the local government maturity 
model to becoming developmental local government.

Programme 5: Human Resource Development 

The purpose of this programme is to conceptualise and facilitate measures to improve quality in education and training. 
The programme provides strategic and technical support to the Eastern Cape Human Resource Development (HRD) 
Council and its members.

Programme 6:  Eastern Cape AIDS Council 

The purpose of this programme is to effectively manage the province’s multi-sectoral response to HIV/AIDS, TB and 
STIs. The programme runs the Eastern Cape AIDS Council (ECAC), a multi-sectoral body representing government 
departments and civil society formations. This programme provides strategic and technical support to ECAC’s members 
and co-ordinates HIV/AIDS related programmes and donor funding. 
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03 
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY 
PROGRAMME

3.1  Programme 1: Operations, Finance, Corporate Services and Knowledge 
Management 

Purpose of the Programme 

The purpose of the programme is the development and implementation of effective and efficient ECSECC 
management and governance systems and procedures. New to the 2014-2019 Strategic Plan is the integration 
of knowledge management, information and communication into the operations function of the organisation. 

Programme Objectives

The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals through focussing on the following 
objectives:

• An effective, efficient and development-oriented governance and management.

• Effective and efficient operations and knowledge management.  

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

PROGRAMME: Operations, Finance, Corporate Services and Knowledge Management

Strategic Objective 1.1:  

An effective, efficient 
and development-
oriented governance and 
management

Actual 
Achievement 

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

44 45 48 3 Additional meetings 
were required by 

governance structures 
in the 4th quarter.

Strategic Objective 1.2:

Effective and efficient 
operations and knowledge 
management

Actual 
Achievement 

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance

2017/2018

Deviation from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

25 40 40 - -
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Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic Objective 1.1:  An effective, efficient and development-oriented governance and management

Performance Indicator Actual 
Achievement 

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from 
Planned Target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2017/2018

Comment on Deviations

1.1.1 Number of meetings of 
functioning governance 
structures that meet all 
systems requirements

20 19 22 3 Over-performance due to 
special meetings of the 

Board and its committees 
taking place.

1.1.2 Number of integrated risk 
management strategies 
implemented to manage 
strategic and operational 
risk

1 7 7 - -

1.1.3 Number of monthly 
cash flow management 
reports to manage 
liquidity risk 

12 12 12 - -

1.1.4 An unqualified audit 
outcome with no matters 
of emphasis in pursuit 
of good corporate 
governance 

1 1 1 - -

1.1.5 Number of interventions 
implemented to simplify 
integrated financial 
systems

1 1 1 - -

1.1.6 Number of interventions 
implemented to improve 
HR system  

4 2 2 - -

1.1.7 Percentage of employees 
above level 4 with 
signed Performance 
Management and 
Development 
Agreements before 01 
April 

100% 100% 100% - -

1.1.8 Percentage of employee 
resignations per year  

8.8% <10% 7.3% - -

1.1.9 Number of ICT system 
interventions 

2 2 2 - -
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Strategic Objective 1.2: Effective and efficient operations and knowledge management  

Performance Indicator Actual 
Achievement 

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from 
Planned Target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2017/2018

Comment on Deviations

1.2.1 Number of 
management reports 
on implementation of 
ECSECC projects to 
monitor the performance 
of the entity

4 6 6 - -

1.2.2 Number of tools 
developed to strengthen 
monitoring, reporting 
and evaluation

1 1 1 - -

1.2.3 Number of tools 
developed to strengthen 
implementation of the 
ECSECC Excellence 
Model

2 1 1 - -

1.2.4 Number of 
communication tools 
implemented

New indicator 8 8 - -

1.2.5 Number of public 
dialogue forums held

New indicator 4 4 - -

1.2.6 Number of knowledge 
products (geographical 
information system [GIS] 
and spatial analysis)

New indicator 4 4 - -

1.2.7 Number of knowledge 
products (publications) 

18 12 12 - -

1.2.8 Number of knowledge 
products (data and 
analysis for policy 
planning)

New indicator 4 4 - -
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Programme Performance against Objectives 

The programme in the period under review achieved 103% of its planned targets. The programme in the period under 
review concentrated on the following deliverables that are in line with the strategic goals of the organisation and the two 
objectives of the programme:

The governance and leadership of the organisation remains stable. The organisation met its statutory obligations of 
governance and reporting. The Board held its annual general meeting, its ordinary Board meetings and all committees of 
the Board met as per their schedule. 

Risk management continues to be integrated into ECSECC activities and there is quarterly monitoring and reporting on 
the organisational risks. Annual risk assessment is conducted and strategic and operational risk registers are in place. 
Identified risks continue to guide strategic and operational decision-making in the organisation. 

ECSECC completed the GIS analysis on rural incentives for Department of Education and the Education Labour Relations 
Council. 

Knowledge products produced in the year under review include: 
• Working paper 21: Leveraging ICT to increase productivity in the agricultural sector and stimulate rural development 

by Dr Josiah Adeyemo. 

• Poverty Trends in South Africa 2006-2015: Highlights for the Eastern Cape. This report contains a summary of the 
findings for the Eastern Cape of the StatsSA report Poverty Trends in South Africa. 

• District and Local Municipality Socio-Economic Review and Outlook 2017 for all local and district municipalities in the 
province. The reports seek to reflect on the current socio-economic developments in the respective local or district 
municipality. Each report provides the demographic patterns, labour dynamics, economic developments, and other 
socio-economic indices related to the triple challenge of poverty, inequality and unemployment.

• Review of Eastern Cape labour market, and review of GDP and inflation on a quarterly basis. 

Research and Impact Assessment projects include the following: 
• Development of Eastern Cape Social Accounting Matrix (SAM): An economy-wide impact assessment model for 

fiscal policy analysis. The project has updated the SAM for the Eastern Cape, built an Eastern Cape Computational 
General Equilibrium (CGE) model and will run fiscal policy simulations using a range of econometric tools. This 
project is done in collaboration with Provincial Treasury and the University of Fort Hare research project on New 
Sources of Provincial Own Revenue in The Eastern Cape; 

• Research design and capacity support to ECDC for impact assessment of jobs stimulus fund. ECSECC will carry out 
quantitative data analysis and run simulations of economy-wide impact of the Jobs Fund to date. The project will be 
completed in the second quarter of 2018/19. 

ECSECC continued to provide data and trend analysis to stakeholders and members of the public on request. The 
ECSECC website serves as a resource hub for stakeholders. 

Programme Performance against Budget

Budget Performance

Operations, Finance, 
Corporate Services and 
Knowledge Management

2017/2018 2016/2017

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 8 816  9 193  -377 7 991 8 191 -200)

Compensation for 
employees (COE)

15 427  15 435 -8 14 236 14 473 -237

Capital 543  326 217 104 2 326 -2 222

TOTAL 24 786  24 954 -168 22 331 24 990 -2 659

Note:  As per the National Treasury Annual Report Guide - expenditure as presented above agrees to the Annual Financial Statements 
which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  These figures exclude commitents against budget until they are expensed.  
Accounting entries that do not have a cash flow effect are also included in the expenditure figures above.  The budget figures are 
based on the modified cash basis therefore there are differences between the two reporting methods.

The goods and services figure above includes depreciation which is an accounting entry.  This has resulted in a perceived 
overspending.  Capital expenditure excludes commitments at 31 March 2018 which has created the perceived underspending.  The 
2017 capital over expenditure is due to 2016 commitments being paid in the 2017 financial year.
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3.2 Programme 2: Economic Governance 

Purpose of the Programme

The aim of this programme is to support the development and implementation of economic policy and strategy to 
shift the economic development path of the Eastern Cape. The peripheral nature of our economy and its relative under-
performance are well understood. The programme seeks to set out clear priorities for the province over the planning 
period, and what can realistically be achieved to improve economic development in the province. 

Programme Objectives

The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals through focussing on the following objective:
•	 To support economic development policy, strategy and planning in the Eastern Cape province.

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

PROGRAMME: Economic Governance

Strategic Objective 2.1: 
To support economic 
development policy, 
strategy and planning in 
the Eastern Cape province 

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

15 28 28 - -
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Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic Objective 2.1: To support economic development policy, strategy and planning in the Eastern Cape province

Performance Indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviations 
from Planned 

Target to Actual 
Achievement for  

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

Ocean 
economy 

No. of partnership 
agreements facilitated 
for execution of strategic 
interventions

New indicator 2 2 - -

Facilitate stakeholder 
forums to improve 
co-ordination and solve 
project blockages

New indicator 4 4 - -

No. of knowledge products 
developed (data and 
analysis for policy and 
planning)

4 1 1 - -

No. of integrated reports to 
track progress on priority 
projects and interventions

New indicator 4 4 - -

Agro- industry No. of strategic 
interventions designed 
for execution of provincial 
priorities

New indicator 1 1 - -

No. of partnership 
agreements facilitated 
for execution of strategic 
interventions.

New indicator 2 2 - -

Facilitate stakeholder 
forums to improve 
co-ordination and solve 
project blockages

New indicator 4 4 - -

No. of knowledge products 
developed (data and 
analysis for policy and 
planning)

New indicator 1 1 - -

Manufacturing 
and other 
sectors 

No. of partnership 
agreements facilitated 
for execution of strategic 
interventions

New indicator 1 1 - -

Facilitate stakeholder 
forums to improve 
co-ordination and solve 
project blockages

New indicator 2 2 - -

No. of knowledge products 
developed (data and 
analysis for policy and 
planning)

New indicator 1 1 - -

Execution of 
partnerships 
in regional 
nodes 

No. of strategic 
interventions designed 
for execution of provincial 
priorities

New indicator 2 2 - -

No. of partnership 
agreements facilitated 
for execution of strategic 
interventions

New indicator 2 2 - -

No. of knowledge products 
developed (data and 
analysis for policy and 
planning)

New indicator 1 1 - -
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Programme Performance against Objectives

The Economic Governance Programme has a very ambitious objective: to help shift the economic development path of 
the province to achieve poverty reduction. This is done through supporting economic development policy, strategy and 
planning in the Eastern Cape province. 

The programme in the period under review achieved 100% of its planned targets. In the year under review the 
programme has been well-positioned to achieve this objective through participation in the PDP review process and 
involvement in district and local long-term planning. Through our involvement in provincial and municipal-level economic 
planning ECSECC is strengthening its identification of key issues and opportunities for promoting pro-poor growth.

The programme in the period under review concentrated on the following deliverables that are in line with the strategic 
goals of the organisation and the programme objective of supporting economic development policy, strategy and 
planning in the Eastern Cape province:

On the Oceans Economy Project and its work packages, the following have been achieved as planned:
• Facilitated provincial preparations for the Small Harbours investment conference. This included facilitation of district 

workshops and sessions convened by the national Department of Public Works in support of policy matters for 
coastal local municipalities in the province to assist in generating projects proposals. The investment conference will 
take place during 2018.  

• In order to formalise a partnership developed between Operation Phakisa: Ocean Economy, positive bi-lateral 
engagements took place to strengthen relationships between provincial and national secretariats for more effective 
implementation of the Ocean Economy Programme in the Eastern Cape.  

• ECSECC provided facilitation and content support to the Provincial Aquaculture Working Group and the Coastal and 
Marine Tourism Working Group.

• ECSECC compiled quarterly integrated updates on the ocean economy sector. Further, an integrated report on 
ocean economy critical skills requirements as identified by national Ocean Economy Labs was prepared and 
presented to the provincial Skills Development Forum. 

In terms of support to the agro-industry sector the following has been achieved: 
• A set of activities took place in this area as part of the development of a district development plan for O.R. Tambo: 

• A stakeholder dialogue seminar was convened; 

• Sector engagement with the agriculture sector in O.R. Tambo District towards packaging and 
implementation of catalytic projects with the district as part of the District Development Plan process took 
place; 

• A concept for a land and economic summit to unlock agricultural potential in O.R. Tambo District has been 
developed and approved by the district. The summit will take place in 2018, and ECSECC is facilitating the 
project packaging and stakeholder engagement process leading up to the summit. 

• A research report “Eastern Cape Household Agricultural Survey (2016): Selected Key Findings on Agriculture 
Potential in the Province” has been developed. The report is based on analysis of “Eastern Cape Household 
Agricultural Survey” conducted by Statistics South Africa in 2016 and outlines that while there is recognition of 
agriculture and rural development issues, there is a need for a more coherent approach, a streamlining of priorities 
and the establishment of structures and capacity that can address agriculture and the rural development agenda in 
a cohesive manner. Such an approach would bring focus and cohesion and would help to identify the areas where 
future action in the province would have the greatest impact.

• ECSECC has provided inter-governmental liaison and facilitation for the Rural Agro-Industries and Financial Initiative 
(RAFI) where the three (3) district executive mayors (O.R. Tambo, Chris Hani and Joe Gqabi District Municipalities) 
have signed agreements with their government counterparts in the Province of Cordoba in Argentina.  

• In March 2018, ECSECC provided facilitation and inter-governmental relations support to the Argentine Envoy led by 
the Argentine Ambassador to South Africa and the technical team to plan and map out the first four (4) sites for the 
RAFI Pilot Programme in O.R. Tambo and Chris Hani Districts. The 10-day visit culminated in a dinner hosted by the 
Office of the Premier and the four districts currently involved in the RAFI with further commitments of co-operation 
and agreement made by representatives of both countries.
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In terms of manufacturing and other sectors, ECSECC’s work has centred on the following:
Responsive action to save jobs in the Eastern Cape 

• Facilitation of engagement between business, municipal and provincial government leadership in Enoch 
Mgijima Municipality (EMM): Facilitated meeting between the premier and stakeholders regarding 
Enoch Mgijima Municipality crisis; EMM strategy proposal presented to CoGTA and support intervention 
developed for EMM. ECSECC also set up and facilitated a business-government-municipality forum on 
service delivery at EMM.

• Facilitation of engagement between business, municipal and provincial government leadership in Sunday 
River Valley Municipality. This included engagement with the Department of Economic Development, 
Environmental Affairs and Tourism of the Eastern Cape (DEDEAT) and CoGTA on inter-departmental 
partnerships and support to Kirkwood spatial planning process. 

• Facilitated engagement between Buffalo City Municipality and Border-Kei Chamber of Business on 
concessions and incentives for industry in the city. 

• Hosted and facilitated a Round Table on the Eastern Cape economic development. The Round Table was 
attended by representatives of industry, government and labour as well as the national Department of Trade 
and Industry (DTI) and was aimed at gathering information for a joint Eastern Cape - DTI intervention.

• Engagement with automotive sector shop stewards on automation and related job losses.

Support to DEDEAT programmes and initiatives: 

• Participation in Rapid Response Co-ordinating Committee  and local interventions. 

• Participated in DTI-DEDEAT industrial parks revitalisation workshop, with DEDEAT and Eastern Cape 
Development Corporation (ECDC). 

• Participation in DEDEAT local procurement forum.

• Support to provincial township economy programme, including quarterly engagement with DEDEAT team, 
development of district engagement process and engagement with Department of Small Business and 
DEDEAT on small business support programme.

In terms of execution partnerships in regional nodes the following has been achieved in fulfilment of 
ECSECC’s strategic partnerships in O.R. Tambo District 

Development of the ORTDM 2030 Vision District Development Plan

• The 2030 Vision District Development Plan (DDP) was developed through a series of facilitated workshops 
with the district municipality and its stakeholders.  The DDP was formally and successfully launched 
through a Launch Summit on 16-17 November 2017. The DDP embraces a host of current and planned 
major developments/initiatives in the district, and builds on and complements the O.R. Tambo DM IDP 
(2017 – 2022). The O.R. Tambo Vision 2030 DDP has district-level strategic goals, aligned to the National and 
Provincial Development Plan, with a number of priority initiatives. There are also five (5) District Catalytic 
Projects (DCPs), to be implemented between 2017 and 2022. ECSECC continues to support the district 
with the facilitation of these projects.  

• Through the work at the ORTDM, ECSECC was able to sign service level agreements with two of its local 
municipalities for the development of their long term plans (Nyandeni LM and Ingquza Hill LM in 2017/18).

• In enhancing the overall ORTDM institutional capabilities, ECSECC supported management and staff 
to develop medium and long term strategic planning documents. An integrated Service Delivery and 
Oversight Model was developed, including assisting with piloting of the model and hands-on support to 
various related aspects such job evaluation and job descriptions, macro-organisation structure, roles and 
responsibilities framework for the councillors clarifying the respective roles and responsibilities of inter alia 
the executive mayor, speaker, municipal whips and mayoral committees. ECSECC reviewed district council 
functions and delegations of powers of councils’ political structures. Capacity enhancement also occurred 
relating to Local Economic Development (LED), planning and water services provision and authority 
managers through one-on-one meetings, workshops, telephonic and in-person advice and inputs to various 
line function documents and meetings. 
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• To enhance O.R. Tambo Water Service Authority function efficiencies ECSECC supported the municipality 
with the following: 

 »  A draft service level agreement (SLA) between the Water Services Authority Manager and Water 
Services Provider was developed by ECSECC and finalised in June 2017.  A ‘Blue Drop’ certification 
programme was also designed and implemented to address water quality. 

 »  Various other planning, implementation monitoring and governance documents were also developed 
including: Water Safety Plan, Hazard Risk Assessment and Monitoring Programme, a plant log sheet, 
water services by-laws, terms of reference for Blue and Green Drop working team, draft Waste Water 
Incident Plan and draft Waste Water Risk Abatement Plan. A site visit was conducted for Mthatha Waste 
Water Works, all pond systems were grouped for Tsolo, Qumbu and Ngqeleni Waste Water Works, 
and draft documents were produced for the Waste Water Risk Abatement Plan together with Annual 
Process Audit, draft Waste Water Works log book, and draft Annual Process Audit (Plan) for the Mthatha 
Wastewater Works.

 » However, implementation and retention of Blue Drop scores is dependent on O.R. Tambo District 
resident capacity and ongoing monitoring. 

• Nyandeni LM Vision 2030 Local Municipal Development Plan (LDP) was developed through a series of 
facilitated workshops with the local municipality and its stakeholders.  The LDP was formally launched in 
November 2017. 

• Further to the LDP, ECSECC was able to work with the relevant Nyandeni LM management and staff to 
develop medium and long term strategic planning documents. Inputs into their draft 2017 IDP was finalised 
and provided to the LM (socio-economic profile). ECSECC also assisted Nyandeni LM prepare for their 
2018/19 planning documentation requirements in February 2018. 

In terms of execution partnerships in regional nodes the following has been achieved in fulfilment of 
ECSECC’s strategic partnerships in Alfred Nzo District:
• A draft 2030 Vision DDP was developed through an incomplete series of facilitated workshops with the district 

municipality and its stakeholders.  The Draft DDP has not yet been formally launched and this has been delayed 
to November 2018, after conclusion of a final round of multi-stakeholder consultation sessions at district and local 
municipal levels.  

• Enhancing the overall Alfred Nzo District Municipality (ANDM) institutional capabilities, ECSECC focussed on 
development of 2017/18 Alfred Nzo Development Agency (ANDA) Corporate Plan/ APP and the 2017-2022 IDP of the 
ANDM.

• ECSECC also assisted with the development and finalisation of the 2017-2022 IDP of the ANDM, Service 
Delivery Budget Improvement Plan as well as the reviewed 2017-2022 IDP (including a Turnaround/Re-engineering 
Action Plan, policy development and performance management issues, and reviewed Service Delivery Budget 
Improvement Plan and technical indicator descriptions which were included in the IDP).

• Institutional support also included capacity enhancement relating to LED. This is further elaborated under 
Programme 3.

Programme Performance against Budget

Budget Performance

Economic Governance 2017/2018 2016/2017

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 1 105 1 023 82 310 291 19

COE 4 907 4 930 -23 3 350 3 385 -35

Capital - - - - - -

TOTAL 6 012 5 953 59 3 660 3 676 -16

Note:  As per the National Treasury Annual Report Guide - expenditure as presented above agrees to the Annual Financial Statements 
which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  These figures exclude commitents against budget until they are expensed.  
The budget figures are based on the modified cash basis therefore there are differences between the two reporting methods.

Variance is considered reasonable.
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3.3 Programme 3: Infrastructure Governance

Purpose of the Programme

This programme has been established as a stand-alone programme to respond to ECSECC’s mandate to mobilise and 
co-ordinate stakeholders to drive a common provincial infrastructure agenda in the Eastern Cape. This is done to improve 
integration of infrastructure planning across sectors and spheres of government.

Programme Objectives

The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals through focussing on the following objective:
•	 Develop and drive a common provincial infrastructure agenda to support socio-economic development.

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

PROGRAMME: Infrastructure Governance

Strategic Objective 3.1: 
Develop and drive a common 
provincial infrastructure 
agenda to support socio-
economic development

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

26 18 18 - -

Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic Objective 3.1: Develop and drive a common provincial infrastructure agenda to support socio-economic development

Performance Indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation 
from Planned 

Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

Infrastructure 
stakeholder 
management 
and co-
ordination 

No. of integrated reports to 
track progress on priority 
projects and interventions

12 4 4 - -

Facilitate stakeholder 
forums to improve co-
ordination and solve project 
blockages

12 8 8 - -

Small town 
development

Facilitate stakeholder 
forums to improve co-
ordination and solve project 
blockages

New indicator 4 4 - -

No. of knowledge products 
developed (data and 
analysis for policy and 
planning)

New indicator 1 1 - -

District 
institutional 
support 

No. of partnership 
agreements facilitated 
for execution of strategic 
interventions.

New indicator 1 1 - -
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Programme Performance against Objectives

The programme in the period under review achieved 100% of its planned targets. The programme in the period under 
review concentrated on the focus areas listed below that are in line with the strategic goals of the organisation and the 
programme objective of developing and driving a common provincial infrastructure agenda to support socio-economic 
development. 

N2 Wild Coast Road 
• Through a partnership with SANRAL the organisation set up a forum of departments (national and provincial) and 

municipalities with a vision to maximise the socio-economic impact of the N2 Wild Coast Road in the Wild Coast 
Corridor. 

• ECSECC arranges and facilitates a quarterly briefing by SANRAL on the N2 Wild Coast Road to one forum rather than 
to all departments and municipalities individually, thereby deriving collective feedback on the project and saving time 
and resources.  

• Through the inter-departmental forum, the Wild Coast Spatial Development Framework was resuscitated from the EC 
CoGTA. The framework was developed in 2010, however, was never approved. The framework needs to be updated 
so that it takes into account Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act (Act 6 of 2013) (SPLUMA) imperatives.

• The N2 Wild Coast Corridor Forum has since developed a draft action plan that is currently in the consultation phase 
with key stakeholders. 

Mzimvubu Multi-Purpose Development Project 
• Following the directive from the Minister of Water and Sanitation for Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority (TCTA) to 

lead the resource mobilisation and implementation of the Mzimvubu Project, ECSECC supported TCTA with the 
Mzimvubu Strategic Review document, outlining measures of success for the project. ECSECC provided TCTA with 
the Mzimvubu Governance Framework that was previously developed and approved by the Eastern Cape Executive 
Council. TCTA utilised ECSECC insights on the project together with the relevant documents in developing the 
Mzimvubu Project Charter that was later approved by their Board. 

• ECSECC further supported the Office of the Premier by developing the terms of reference for the Stakeholder & 
Communications Work Stream.  

Broadband initiatives 
• The pilot phase of the broadband rollout by the Department of Telecommunications and Postal Services (DTPS) in 

O.R. Tambo that sought to connect schools, health facilities and all public institutions, could not proceed through 
Telkom as procurement processes were not followed. When tenders were invited, no suitable bid was found in 
2016. In 2017/18, the DTPS started negotiations with the State Information Technology Agency (SITA) and Broadband 
Infraco (BBI) that were concluded with the signing of contracts in March 2018. Both SITA and BBI have concluded 
their procurement of service providers that will support them in the implementation. Currently, site surveys are 
taking place in O.R. Tambo District. 

• With respect to the broadband rollout by Universal Service and Access Agency of South Africa (USAASA) in the 
King Sabata Dalyindyebo and Mhlontlo Local Municipalities, 410 out of 609 schools and health facilities have been 
connected. Challenges faced by the service provider that is implementing led to delays in the project, resulting in a 
request to USAASA for an extension of the project up to May 2018. In addition, USAASA appointed another service 
provider in Nyandeni Local Municipality to connect 150 schools, 30 clinics, 12 government offices and also set up 20 
Wi-Fi hotspots in the various community facilities such as community halls, shops etc. 

 Eastern Cape Infrastructure Plan (ECIP)
• The Eastern Cape Infrastructure Plan developed by ECSECC as per the request from the Office of the Premier was 

approved by the Eastern Cape Executive Council in April 2017. 

• With the support of ECSECC, the Office of the Premier is currently setting up the institutional arrangements that will 
drive the implementation of the ECIP. Key among the structures is the Eastern Cape Provincial Infrastructure Co-
ordinating Committee (EC PICC) that will be chaired by the Eastern Cape Premier and include the relevant members 
of the Executive Council and the various district and metropolitan mayors. The EC PICC will provide strategic 
leadership on the Eastern Cape infrastructure agenda and lobby the national government on key infrastructure 
matters for the province. 
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Small Town Development 
•	 During 2017/18, ECSECC supported the Office of the Premier in setting up the Provincial Steering Committee for the 

Small Town Development.

•	 The organisations main achievement was to implement a capability development programme that targeted local 
economic development managers in the Alfred Nzo District, O.R. Tambo District and respective local municipalities. 
The purpose of this programme was to build “a cadre of dynamic economic development practitioners through 
nurturing individual potential”. 

•	 The programme was developed in response to research and the organisations own experience that while economic 
development professionals in municipalities have the potential to make a significant contribution to economic 
transformation in South Africa, large challenges remain. To achieve this, they need to have a collective identity, to 
standardise their operations and possess capabilities to address challenges associated with governance, institutional 
arrangements and delivery mechanisms. 

•	 The programmes objective was to have an impact on participant’s personal understanding, attitude, skills and 
knowledge in relationship to their profession (economic development) and the field/area of specialisation (small 
town regeneration).  The programme was implemented through six contact sessions covering the following themes: 
being a professional; understanding local and regional economic development; development and use of small town 
regeneration strategy; managing stakeholder communications; results and advocacy; and a roundtable (with public 
and private sector partners).

•	 The programme was well-received and ECSECC will continue supporting practitioners in the year to come. 

Programme Performance against Budget

Budget Performance

Infrastructure Governance 2017/2018 2016/2017

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 225 213 12 160 144 16

COE 3 011 3 015 -4 2 850 2 882 -32

Capital - - - - - -

TOTAL 3 236 3 228 8 3 010 3 026 -16

Note:  As per the National Treasury Annual Report Guide - expenditure as presented above agrees to the Annual Financial Statements 
which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  These figures exclude commitents against budget until they are expensed.  
The budget figures are based on the modified cash basis therefore there are differences between the two reporting methods.

Variance is considered reasonable.
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3.4 Programme 4: Strategic Governance Support

Purpose of the Programme

The aim of this programme is to support the Office of the Premier, provincial government departments and local 
government in the field of development planning. This will include providing support to the centre of government in 
advancing a capable developmental state across spheres, buttressed by a strong integrating centre. This also includes 
transitioning provincial municipalities from the lower levels of the local government maturity model to becoming 
developmental local government.

Programme Objectives

The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals through focussing on the following objective:
•	  Support the building of a capable developmental state.

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

PROGRAMME: Strategic Governance Support

Strategic Objective 4.1: 
Support the building of a 
capable developmental state 

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

17 10 10 - -

Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic Objective 4.1: Support the building of a capable developmental state

Performance Indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation 
from Planned 

Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

Provincial 
government

No. of departments 
supported with strategic 
planning

4 4 4 - -

Local 
government 

No. of municipalities 
supported with strategic 
planning

5 4 4 - -

No of municipal support 
interventions developed 
and implemented 

New indicator 2 2 - -

Programme Performance against Objectives

The programme in the period under review focussed on support to integrated development planning and institution 
building in support of provincial priorities in the provincial and local spheres of government. The programme in the period 
under review achieved 100% of its planned targets.

Strategic support to provincial government: 
• ECSECC provides facilitation support to provincial departments and public entities in order to ensure that strategic 

and annual plans of departments are developed in line with the National and Provincial Development Plan and 
provincial priorities. Annual strategic planning was facilitated for the Department of Economic Development, 
Environment and Tourism (DEDEAT) and Department of Human Settlements (DHS). ECSECC also facilitated 
strategic planning for the Eastern Cape Development Corporation and the Eastern Cape Liquor Board.

• ECSECC facilitated Department of Public Works Strategic Conversation Session on 26-28 July 2017 in preparation 
for the roads functions transfer to the Department of Transport in the 2018/19 financial year.  

• In support of the Department of Safety and Community Liaison, Tobacco Institute of South Africa and British 
American Tobacco SA, ECSECC co-hosted the Eastern Cape Illicit Trade Symposium where government agencies 
such as the Eastern Cape Liquor Board and the Directorate for Priority Crime Investigation presented experiences 
and solutions to curb the growth of this form of organised crime in the province. 
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• ECSECC has been requested to support the Eastern Cape Planning Commission in the delivery of its mandate, in 
collaboration with OTP. Work performed in the year under review included the review and update of the Provincial 
Development Plan. The work will be completed in 2018. 

Strengthen developmental local government 
Co-ordination, integration, focus and quality of support to local government remains a challenge. EC CoGTA notes that 
uneven performance continues to characterise municipalities and some municipalities continue to remain in a dire state 
despite repeated support and intervention measures. Challenges in municipalities relate to unfunded budgets, low 
revenue, high debt rates, low collection rates coupled with bloated organograms. Other challenges pertain to aging 
infrastructure, poor operations and maintenance. Municipalities continue to have planning challenges, with inability to 
address historical spatial patterns and manage rapid urbanisation.

In this regard, ECSECC provides content and facilitation support to EC CoGTA. More specifically, this support included: 
• Strategic planning for the Developmental Local Government Branch;

• Revival of the Local Government Co-ordination and Integration Framework and its approval by EXCO. The Co-
ordination and Integration Framework provides an integrative mechanism for provincial government in fulfilling its 
constitutional and legal responsibilities over local government. This includes:

•  The creation of a central co-ordinating architecture for support and monitoring programmes as well as other 
intervention initiatives, in the municipalities, driven by various provincial departments and partners. The 
focus will be the creation of a nucleus to integrate disparate intervention efforts in the municipalities into an 
integrated programme with a unified set of outcomes and objectives.

• A joined-up mechanism to support the building of a capable developmental local state that partners with 
the citizens in planning and implementing the development agenda as articulated in the NDP, PDP and IDPs. 
This will lead to a shared and inclusive understanding of the development imperatives and the commitment 
required from all actors in the local development space. 

• Ongoing support to the IDP phased-in approach. This has included facilitation of provincial workshops, review 
and development of a framework and associated tools. ECSECC has also participated in the assessment and 
standardisation of the situation analysis chapter in IDPs.

• Support to set up an Advisory Committee to support the challenges faced by the four (4) new amalgamated 
municipalities. 

• ECSECC also facilitated the CoGTA LED Summit in November 2017.  

• To take this work forward, ECSECC is currently negotiating a partnership agreement for 2018/19 financial year. 
The partnership will have four main focus areas:  technical support to IGR structures; evidence-based planning and 
intervention design; technical support to phased-in IDP support; and institutional development support. 

ESCECC further focussed on cascading national and provincial priorities to district municipalities and ensuring 5-year 
IDP alignment with the NDP, PDP and the P-MTSF and its sector strategies. More specifically, this was done through 
facilitating the development of long term district development plans in O.R. Tambo and Alfred Nzo districts. This work 
was done across all ECSECC programmes. Other municipalities supported with content facilitation, strategy review and 
strategic information include: Buffalo City Metropolitan Municipality, Amatole District, Chris Hani District and a range of 
local municipalities. 

ECSECC facilitated a series of strategic workshops in support of a Council Task Team supporting the Makana Local 
Municipality (MLM) to review its Financial Turnaround Strategy. An action plan to deliver short- and long-term solutions 
on revenue enhancement targeting increased collection of rates, water and electricity and other innovative revenue 
sources was developed as a result. 

Programme Performance against Budget

Budget Performance

Strategic Governance 
Support

2017/2018 2016/2017

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 95 91 4 223 191 32

COE 863 865 -2 773 760 13

Capital - - - - - -

TOTAL 958 956 2 996 951 45

Note:  As per the National Treasury Annual Report Guide - expenditure as presented above agrees to the Annual Financial Statements 
which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  These figures exclude commitents against budget until they are expensed.  
The budget figures are based on the modified cash basis therefore there are differences between the two reporting methods.

Variance is considered reasonable.
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3.5 Programme 5: Human Resource Development

Purpose of the Programme

The purpose of this programme is to enhance human capital formation in the Eastern Cape through conceptualising 
and facilitating measures to improve quality in education and training. The programme provides strategic and technical 
support to the EC HRD Council.  

Programme Objectives

The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals through focussing on the following objective:
•	 To conceptualise and facilitate measures to improve quality in education and training in the Eastern Cape.

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

PROGRAMME: Human Resource Development

Strategic Objective 5.1:      

To conceptualise and 
facilitate measures to 
improve quality in education 
and training in the Eastern 
Cape

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2016/2017

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

7 15 15 - -

Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic Objective 5.1: To conceptualise and facilitate measures to improve quality in education and training in the Eastern Cape

Performance Indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation 
from Planned 

Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

Partnership 
facilitation 
and resource 
leverage 

Facilitate stakeholder 
forums to improve 
co-ordination and solve 
project blockages

New indicator 4 4 - -

No. of partnership 
agreements facilitated 
for execution of strategic 
interventions.

New indicator 3 3 - -

No. of strategic 
interventions designed 
for execution of provincial 
priorities 

New indicator 2 2 - -

No. of integrated reports to 
track progress on priority 
projects and interventions

New indicator 4 4 - -

Knowledge 
generation

No. of knowledge products 
developed (data and 
analysis for policy and 
planning)

3 2 2 - -
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Programme Performance against Objectives

The HRD programme and the projects executed in the year under review, are designed to conceptualise and facilitate 
measures to improve quality in education and training in the province. The programme focusses on knowledge 
generation, partnership facilitation and resource leveraging for skills development interventions in support of provincial 
priorities. The programme in the period under review achieved 100% of its planned targets. Highlights of performance 
are outlined below.

HRD Council Functionality 

Four council plenary meetings took place and the main theme for the council for the year under review was the 
#FeesMustFall campaign and the announcement of free higher education. 
• Institutions of higher learning in South Africa were facing massive upheavals at their campuses during the 

#FeesMustFall campaign by students. To assist the institutions with their response, the council established a task 
team on higher education. The task team worked with student formations to develop a proposal on university fee 
structure. The task team was also tasked by the council to study the report of the Heher Commission into the 
Feasibility of Fee-Free Higher Education and make proposals for both TVETs and universities in the province.

• When the presidential declaration was made in December 2017, the task team was tasked to meet with the critical 
stakeholders in higher education, including principals of TVET Colleges,  vice-chancellors and student formations.  
This took place in January 2018 and it was chaired by the Honourable Premier of the Eastern Cape. The task team 
facilitated a meeting with the Sector and Education Training Authority (SETA) CEOs, and the National Department of 
Higher Education to discuss the injection of further funding for higher education in the province by the SETAs. 

Strengthening and Functionality of Working Groups
• The past financial year has seen a great improvement of the functioning of HRD Council working groups. They have 

been strengthened by inviting strategic stakeholder participation. Stakeholders such as Council for Scientific and 
Industrial Research (CSIR), the Landbank, ECDC Rhodes University, Walter Sisulu University, labour and the OTP 
added more capacity to the Research and Innovation Working Group.

• Out of the discussions of the working groups, priority projects have been introduced to the council and execution is 
under way. Priority projects include the preparation of a new delivery model for improvement of STEM education and 
a Student Entrepreneurship Development and Incubator Project. 

 Strategic partnerships established

•	 In November 2018 a new partnership with the Engineering Council of South Africa (ECSA) was established. This 
partnership will unblock bottlenecks experienced by new engineering graduates in registering with the Council of 
Engineers and as such address critical pre-requisites for access to employment and tenders. Information on registered 
engineers in the province has been sourced though this partnership. As a result, ECSA has committed to fund a new 
graduate tracer study to be conducted to track progress of undergraduate students in engineering.

Programme Performance against Budget

Budget Performance

Human Resource 
Development

2017/2018 2016/2017

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 90 82 2 120 106 14

COE 2 755 2 762 -7 2 684 2 694 -10

Capital - - - - - -

TOTAL 2 845 2 850 -5 2 804 2 800 4

Note:  As per the National Treasury Annual Report Guide - expenditure as presented above agrees to the Annual Financial Statements 
which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  These figures exclude commitents against budget until they are expensed.  
The budget figures are based on the modified cash basis therefore there are differences between the two reporting methods.

Variance is considered reasonable.
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3.6 Programme 6: HIV/AIDS

Purpose of the Programme

The purpose of this programme is to effectively manage the province’s multi-sectoral response to HIV/AIDS, TB and 
STIs. The programme runs the Eastern Cape AIDS Council (ECAC), a multi-sectoral body representing government 
departments and civil society formations. This programme provides strategic and technical support to ECAC’s members. 

Programme Objectives

The programme contributes to the attainment of the ECSECC goals through focussing on the following objectives:
•	 Reduce the rate of new HIV and TB infections using combination prevention methods and a multi-sectoral approach.

•	 Protect human rights and end all unlawful discrimination and inequality among people affected by HIV.

•	 Ensure functionality of AIDS councils in the Eastern Cape.

Strategic Objectives, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

PROGRAMME: HIV/AIDS 

Strategic Objective 6.1: 
Reduce the rate of new 
HIV and TB infections using 
combination prevention 
methods and a multi-sectorial 
approach 

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

7 26 26 - -

Strategic Objective 6.2: 
Protect human rights and end 
all unlawful discrimination 
and inequality among people 
affected by HIV

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

4 2 2 - -

Strategic Objective 6.3: 
Ensure functionality of AIDS 
councils in the Eastern Cape

Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

22 33 33 - -

Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Strategic Objective 6.1: Reduce the rate of new HIV and TB infections using combination prevention methods and a multi-sectorial approach

Performance Indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation 
from Planned 

Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

Prevention 
campaigns 
and system 
interventions 
targeting key 
populations 

No. of dialogues 
conducted for young 
women

4 4 4 - -

No. of HTS activations 
conducted

New indicator 4 4 - -

No. of interventions 
aimed at preventing 
the spread of HIV and 
TB in the Eastern Cape 
province developed – 
World AIDS Day and 
World TB Day.

3 2 2 - -
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Treatment 
campaigns 
and system 
interventions 

No. of interventions 
designed to improve 
treatment adherence in 
the Eastern Cape  

New indicator 8 8 - -

No. of interventions 
aimed at the 
implementation of Test 
and Treat guidelines

New indicator 4 4 - -

No. of communication 
messages published/
distributed and conducted 
for viral load suppression

New indicator 4 4 - -

Mitigating 
impact on HIV 
targeting key 
populations 

No. of interventions 
aimed at reducing the 
impact of HIV on children 
orphaned through HIV 
and related illnesses 
developed

2 4 4 - -

Strategic Objective 6.2: Protect human rights and end all unlawful discrimination and inequality among people affected by HIV

Performance Indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation 
from Planned 

Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

Human rights, 
stigma and 
discriminations 

No. of interventions 
developed to deal with 
stigma, discrimination and 
violation of human rights 
for people who are HIV 
positive

2 2 2 - -

Strategic Objective 6.3: Functionality of AIDS Councils in the Eastern Cape

Performance Indicator Actual 
Achievement  

2016/2017

Planned 
Target 

2017/2018

Actual 
Performance 

2017/2018

Deviation 
from Planned 

Target to Actual 
Achievement for 

2017/2018

Comment on 
Deviations

Research No. of knowledge products 
developed (data and 
analysis for policy and 
planning)

1 2 2 - -

M&E No. of integrated 
monitoring reports 
(Provincial Strategic Plan)

4 4 4 - -

Council 
functionality 
and capacity 

No. of plans developed 
to fund strategic ECAC 
interventions

1 4 4 - -

No. of capacity 
development plans 
developed for district AIDS 
councils 

3 4 4 - -

No. of capacity 
development plans 
developed for civil society 
sectors

New indicator 4 4 - -

No. of ECAC structures 
that are co-ordinated and 
functional (civil society, 
finance committee, inter-
departmental committee 
and the council plenary)

5 8 8 - -

No. of partnership 
agreements facilitated for 
execution of PSP 

1 3 3 - -

Community-
based response

No. of social labs establish 
in response to Operation 
Masinyange

New indicator 4 4 - -
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Programme Performance against Objectives

The purpose of this programme is to assist the province to effectively manage its multi-sectoral response to HIV/AIDS, 
TB and STIs. The work of ECAC is carried out in support of the goal of improving the health profile of the province. Its 
community-based response is aimed at improving integration of health care-related and health-promoting services at 
community level. The programme in the period under review achieved 100% of its planned targets. Below we outline 
some of the performance achievements in the year under review. 

Development of the Provincial Strategic Plan 2017-2022
Provincial consultation sessions on the Provincial Strategic Plan on HIV/AIDS, TB and STIs for the period 2017-2022 were 
held and an Eastern Cape Provincial Implementation Plan is in place. The plan contains agreed provincial actions to be 
taken over the period 2017-2022 to achieve the targets set by SANAC, provincial targets and an M&E framework. 

The development of the plan involved extensive negotiations with provincial government departments and social 
partners to include the programmes and targets contained in the Provincial Implementation Plan (PIP) in their annual 
performance plans and budgets. ECAC also supported the development of district implementation plans in seven district 
municipalities. 

World AIDS Day 
On the 01 December 2017 the province hosted a successful national World AIDS Day event and facilitated the build-up 
programme. The World AIDS Day event was preceded by the first provincial Women Sector Summit. The summit was 
attended by women from community-based organisations in the province and discussed community concerns pertaining 
to the prevention of HIV among women, strengthening community systems and gender-based violence. It is noteworthy 
that provincial and district representatives to the provincial AIDS council and its respective district AIDS councils were 
selected from community-based organisations. The women who took part in the summit and the organisations they 
represent now form a women’s network at district level. As an example, there is now a fully-fledged Women’s Forum in 
Chris Hani District because of the summit.

One thematic focus for World AIDS Day 2017 was sex workers as one of the key populations driving the HIV epidemic. 
There was an emphasis on harassment of sex workers by police. ECAC, through SANAC, facilitated a discussion 
between the national and provincial leadership of organised sex workers and the South African Police Service (SAPS). 
The dialogue focussed on harassment of sex workers by police in South Africa and the Eastern Cape, with emphasis on 
how confiscation of property makes HIV prevention and treatment adherence difficult. The outcome of the dialogue was 
the establishment of a partnership in the province between SAPS and the sex workers sector to address protection of 
sex workers while simultaneously addressing crime prevention. This partnership was cemented with the participation of 
the Provincial Commissioner of Police, ECAC and the EC Department of Health. 

A second thematic focus was the participation of traditional leadership in the HIV response. On the day of the main 
event, the Deputy President, Premier of the Eastern Cape and the Minister of Health held a televised public dialogue 
with three kings of the Eastern Cape Province. In the dialogue the kings committed themselves and their subordinates 
and structures, such as chiefs and district royal councils to full participation in the response. As a result of this 
development the House of Traditional Leaders in the province has commenced the development of their own provincial 
plan aligned to the PIP 2017-2022. 

More than 24 radio stations participated in the event and it is estimated that HIV prevention messages reached millions 
of people through the Worlds AIDS Day campaign. 

Orphans and Vulnerable Children 
• ECAC, the national and EC Departments of Social Development (DSD) and other stakeholders in the province 

hosted a summit to develop strategies to strengthen the provision of services to children. The summit was held 
on from 22-24 May 2017 and developed an intervention plan for comprehensive services to the estimated 134 000 
children affected by HIV/AIDS in the Eastern Cape province. 

• The meeting agreed that ECAC should engage the provincial DSD to fund the co-ordination forum for the Orphans 
and Vulnerable Children (OVC programme under the banner of ECAC. The forum is budgeted for in the 2018 budget. 
As a result of ECAC’s facilitation, DSD pledged R500 000 to community-based NGOs mitigating the psycho-social 
needs of orphans and vulnerable children. 

Strategy 90/90/90
• The country adopted the 90/90/90 strategy as proposed by UNAIDS in 2016. The strategy aims to find 90% of 

people who are HIV positive through a massive HIV testing drive, initiate 90% of those people to the anti-retroviral 
treatment through various strategies and campaigns, and help 90% of the people initiated on treatment to suppress 
viral load. 
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• HIV Counselling and Testing (HCT) campaign: 

•  ECAC in partnership with the EC DoH continued to play a mobilisation role in the first “90” through the HCT 
campaign. The province of the Eastern Cape again met its nationally determined target of 2 million people 
tested for HIV in the province.

• Adherence clubs: 

• To reach the second and the third “90” the country adopted different strategies. One of these strategies is 
called adherence clubs. It is a club where a group of people not larger than 30 meet to discuss issues and 
challenges pertaining to treatment. These are people who have not defaulted on treatment for 18 months 
or more. As a result of strong treatment adherence and if there are no complications after their blood has 
been tested, they can receive their treatment pre-packed to supply them for three months. This in return 
motivates them to continue adhering while on the other side suppressing viral load. 

• Research conducted by ECAC shows that three main problems were faced by adherence clubs in the 
Eastern Cape. Firstly, adherence clubs require people to remain on treatment for at least 18 months. The 
province is losing a lot of people who are initiated on treatment but never return to take their treatment. 
This group is regarded as “loss to follow-up”. Secondly, the adherence clubs focus on people who are not 
defaulting. The problem is that the province has a very high rate of defaulters. Lastly, most adherence clubs 
in the province are facility-based. This defeats the purpose of adherence clubs where people still wait in 
facilities unattended. 

• To address this, ECAC in partnership with the EC DoH conducted action research at a range of facilities. 
Results include the need to strengthen counselling, transition clubs to be community-based and assign a 
dedicated physician in the clubs which is required according to the guidelines. As a result, an intervention 
to strengthen the programme has been developed and will be rolled out further in 2018. ECAC is convening 
regular meetings with the People Living with HIV and AIDS (PLWHA) sector, EC DoH and partners to track 
progress in the adherence clubs programme in the province. 

• There will be further focus on the “loss to follow up” group in the 2018/19 year. 

Young women 
• Young women continue to be a target population for HIV prevention work, as HIV prevalence and incidence rates 

remain high. The young women social lab was established to track progress on implementation of programmes 
targeted at young women in the Eastern Cape province. It is a multi-faceted programme focussing on the work of 
government departments such as DoE, KFW, the Global Fund partners and the UN agencies. Below we outline the 
main programmes that form part of the social lab. 

• ECAC, EC Department of Education and the UN Family and Population Fund (UNFPA) held a provincial summit on 
the Nzululwazi model for HIV prevention and teenage pregnancy. Presentations were made by the school pupils of 
Nzululwazi, the School Governing Body and the management of the school. The model was adopted as a provincial 
model and will be expanded to 20 schools across the province in 2018.

• In terms of the KFW programme, three EC principal recipients were appointed, namely Beyond Zero for the HIV 
testing and counselling, Small Projects Foundation for behavioural change and Masimanyane for gender-based 
violence. The DG Murray Trust who is the main recipient of the fund appointed Harambe to facilitate employment 
for young women as an HIV prevention strategy. These have reported steady progress and ECAC is co-ordinating 
progress reporting. 

• In terms of the Global Fund-funded organisations, Kheth’impilo is implementing a programme of comprehensive 
sexual education and HIV testing in schools. While the programme has experienced some initial challenges, it is 
progressing well overall. 

• The EC DoE is continuing with its programme on Comprehensive Sexuality Learning and Training programme. The 
programme covers more than 500 schools around the province. Kheth’impilo and GIZ have also come in to support 
with the employment of learner support agents in addition to departmental staff. 

• The Department of Social Development has adopted a You Only Live Once (YOLO) programme. This is a behaviour 
change programme focussing on young women and adolescent youth. The programme has also reported steady 
progress. The main challenge with this programme is that the budget has been significantly reduced for 2018. ECAC 
is in discussions with the DSD for continued funding of the programme. 

• Four social labs have been held to track progress on the above-mentioned programmes. 
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Civil society 
• The Civil Society Forum (CSF) is one of the main constituent members of the provincial AIDS Council. The council 

has 12 sectors. Through the GIZ funding seven civil society workshops were held where stakeholders were assisted 
with the development of implementation plans aligned to the PIP.

• Civil society quarterly meetings are held to reflect on issues affecting civil society and inform the council agenda. 
Four meetings were held. In the council meeting CSF raised mainly the issue of funding for non-governmental 
organisations. The CSF participated actively in both the development of the PIP and that of the municipal DIPs. 

M&E and research 
• Four quarterly M&E reports on the Provincial Strategic Plan were developed and shared with stakeholders. 

• District AIDS councils were supported with M&E information to support their meetings and programmes.

• An ECAC M&E forum was established. 

• Evaluation of implementation of the Universal Test and Treat guidelines was conducted and an evaluation was carried 
out on the impact HIV testing services has had on the province over the last five years.

• A desktop research report on progress on development of micro-biocide HIV prevention was developed and 
circulated to ECSECC stakeholders. 

• A research paper on refugees’ access to HIV services was developed in collaboration with the Agency for Refugee 
Education, Skills Training & Advocacy.

• An electronic M&E system has been developed and is currently in a testing phase. Dashboards are automated and 
updated as data is entered as well as an automated PIP report. 

ECAC functionality and strategic partnerships 
• The council is functional despite ongoing funding challenges. For the council to be fully functional district AIDS 

councils led by their executive mayors must also be functional. In 2017, a summit facilitated by SALGA and ECAC 
was held with representatives from all municipalities. The summit resolved that ECAC should form part of the 
SALGA SPU sub-committee where HIV and TB issues are discussed. Further, it was resolved that SALGA will fund 
at least two meetings a year where representatives from all municipalities will meet and give a report on the HIV 
programme. This will improve the functionality of the provincial AIDS Council.

• The council also resolved to have an inter-departmental forum to track the response of government.  Two meetings 
were held in 2017, however the forum was not well supported by relevant programmes. 

• The newly established ECAC Programme Review Committee’s main task is to co-ordinate reports pertaining to the 
PIP. In 2017, the committee was instrumental in co-ordinating the development of the PIP. In 2018, it will start to 
provide quarterly reports of the PIP.

Programme Performance against Budget

Budget Performance

HIV/AIDS 2017/2018 2016/2017

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

Budget Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 380 1 377 -997 2 291 705 1 586

COE 5 461 5 460 1 5 322 5 329 -7

Capital - - - - - -

TOTAL 5 841 6 837 -996 7 613 6 034 1 579

Note:  As per the National Treasury Annual Report Guide - expenditure as presented above agrees to the Annual Financial Statements 
which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  These figures exclude commitents against budget until they are expensed.  
The budget figures are based on the modified cash basis therefore there are differences between the two reporting methods.

Variance in goods and services is due to the spending on the GIZ grant.  The overspending was due to funds being received and 
budgeted in the previous financial year but were spend in the current finanical year in terms of the project timelines as agreed with 
GIZ.
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04 
REVENUE COLLECTION 

4.1 ECSECC Revenue 

ECSECC is mainly financially supported by the Office of the Premier through voted funds. ECSECC also receives some 
funding from donor funders and municipalities for work as agreed upon on the service level agreement with each of 
these parties. 

The table below provides a summary of revenue collection in the 2016/17 and 2017/18 financial years. 

2016/2017 2017/2018

Sources of 
Revenue

Estimate Actual

Amount 
Collected

(Over)/Under 
Collection

Estimate Actual

Amount 
Collected

(Over)/Under 
Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Office of the 
Premier

37 011 37 011 0 39 158 39 158 0

GIZ 2 191 539 1 652 0 596 (596)

Services Rendered 90 1 750 (1 660) 4 010 5 360 (1 350)

Other Income 1 122 1 118 4 510 637 (127)

TOTAL 40 414 40 418 (4) 43 678 45 751 (2 073)

Deviations

GIZ : The GIZ contract was originally budgeted for in 2016/17.  The contract however was extended into the current 
financial year with some of the funds budgeted for in 2016/17 received in 2017/18.

Services Rendered: These funds were received in the previous financial year and allocated to the current financial year 
as spending is scheduled for 2017/18.  Funds received in the previous financial year for SLAs was included in 2017/18 
budget. The actual received represents the cash received in the current financial year.

Other Income: Other income consists of interest, insurance claims and dividends. Additional interest was collected due 
to increased tranche received.

4.2 Capital Investment, Maintenance and Asset Management

a.  Capital investment:  ECSECC capital investment includes computers, furniture and fittings and intangible assets. 
During the 2017/18 financial year, an amount of R326 616 was spent out of the current year budget.

b. Maintenance: There was no major maintenance done during the 2017/18. No repairs and maintenance amount was 
expended during the year.

c. Asset Management: The purpose of the asset management is to enable ECSECC to meet its service delivery 
objectives efficiently and effectively by achieving the best possible match of assets with programme delivery 
strategies. Acquisition and disposal were dealt with per relevant sections in this policy. All assets were recorded 
in the asset register which was used in planning and budgeting and to record the information as a basis for the 
preparation of reports to Treasury, including annual financial statements.
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PART C
GOVERNANCE
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01 
INTRODUCTION
Corporate governance embodies the processes and systems by which ECSECC is directed, controlled and held to 
account. In addition to legislative requirements based on the Companies Act, corporate governance in ECSECC is applied 
through the prescripts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the principles contained in 
the King Report on Corporate Governance.

The Provincial Legislature, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of ECSECC are responsible for corporate 
governance.

02 
PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
ATTENDED
In the period under review the ECSECC Board and Management, attended the OTP Portfolio Committee meetings on 
the following dates:
• 21 April 2017

• 07 November 2017.

03 
EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
The relationship between ECSECC and the Office of The Premier is governed by a Service Level Agreement signed at 
the start of every financial year. ECSECC engages with the Office of the Premier on its plans in order to understand the 
expectation of the OTP. The OTP is invited to the annual strategic review session of the Board. ECSECC reports on a 
quarterly, mid-term and annual basis to the OTP.

ECSECC management meets quarterly with the Premier to present quarterly performance results. 

ECSECC has complied with the SLA stipulations and has submitted quarterly reports and plans, mid-term peports and an 
annual performance plan and annual report in line with the legislative prescripts as well. 
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04 
THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD

4.1 Introduction

The Eastern Cape Socio-Economic Consultative Council is governed by a multi-stakeholder Board of Directors who 
account to the Premier of the Eastern Cape as the Executive Authority. The premier has delegated MEC Mlibo 
Qhoboshiyane to be the Chairperson of the ECSECC Board.  The Board of Directors are proposed by the six (6) 
stakeholder constituencies that make up ECSECC in terms of ECSECC’s memorandum of incorporation. These 
stakeholder representatives are elected at an annual general meeting and serve for two (2) years, after which they 
become eligible for re-election if nominated by their stakeholder constituencies.

Each stakeholder constituency has two (2) representatives on the Board of Directors.  A maximum of two additional 
Board members may be recruited onto the Board of Directors at the annual general meeting.  

The Board meets four times a year to consider reports from management and its sub-committees. The committees also 
meet four times a year to consider reports from management and perform such duties as delegated to it by the Board.

4.2 The Role of the Board

The Board of ECSECC meets four times a year and its role is to provide strategic leadership to the organisation and 
ensures that corporate governance principles are adhered to. It also considers quarterly reports from management and 
oversees the overall performance of the organisation in line with its mandate and strategic plan.

4.3 Board Charter

The ECSECC Board Charter is incorporated into the organisation’s Memorandum of Incorporation and stipulates the 
nature and powers of the company; directors’ disqualification, removal and rotation of directors; authority of the Board 
of Directors; meetings – proceedings, minutes and annual general meetings; indemnification and remuneration of 
directors; officer and committees; notices; distribution of income; deregistration; financial year end; accounting records 
and, financial statements and donations.

The Board and its sub-committees completed its performance self-assessment. The assessment also considered the 
requirements set out in the charter(s) of the Board and its sub-committees. Overall the Board and its sub-committees 
complied with the requirements of the charters.
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4.4 Composition of the Board

The premier has delegated MEC Mlibo Qhoboshiyane to be the chairperson of the ECSECC Board in the 2017/18 
finacnial year.  The Board of Directors are proposed by the six (6) stakeholder constituencies that make up ECSECC in 
terms of ECSECC’s memorandum of incorporation.  These stakeholder representatives are elected at an annual general 
meeting in August every year.

Name Designation 
(in terms of 
the Public 

Entity Board 
structure)

Date 
Appointed

Date 
Resigned

Qualifications 
/ Area of 
Expertise

Board 
Directorships 

(List of 
Entities)

Other Committees 
or Task Teams  (e.g.: 
Audit Committee/

Ministerial Task Team)

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

MEC M. 
Qoboshiyane

Chairperson 
& Provincial 
Government

August 
2014

Current Constituency 
Based

None 2

Mr M. Matutu Provincial 
Government

August 
2016

Current Constituency 
Based

None 5

Mr L. Jack Higher 
Education

August 
2016

Current Constituency 
Based

Finance and Admin. 5

Prof N. Monde Higher 
Education

August 
2016

Current Constituency 
Based

Planning & 
Programmes

5

Mr X. Malamlela Organised 
Labour

August 
2015

Current Constituency 
Based

Planning & 
Programmes

7

Mr M. Toyis Organised 
Labour

August 
2014

Current Constituency 
Based

None 6

Ms R. Moodley Non-
Governmental 
Organisations

November 
2011

Current Constituency 
Based

Audit, Risk & ICT 
Committee and 
Finance & Admin.

7

Mr D. Claassen Non-
Governmental 
Organisations

October 
2009

Current Constituency 
Based

Planning & 
Programmes

7

Mr G. Mpumza Local 
Government

August 
2012

Current Constituency 
Based

Planning & 
Programmes and 
Finance and Admin

1

Mr M. Koyo Local 
Government

August 
2016

Current Constituency 
Based

None 3

Mr P. Ndendela Organised 
Business

November 
2010

Current Constituency 
Based

Planning & 
Programmes

6

Mr K. Hustler Organised 
Business

October 
2009

May 2018 Constituency 
Based

NONE 0

Mr L. Holbrook Organised 
Business

November 
2011

Current Constituency 
Based

Finance and Admin 6

Mr Z. Tini Independent Before 
2007

Current Constituency 
Based

Finance and Admin 6

• Mr K. Hustler and Mr L. Holbrook were sharing a vote; Mr K. Hustler resigned in May 2017. ECSECC is still awaiting 
his constituency replacement;

• In total four (4) Board meetings, one (1) annual general meeting, one (1) strategic planning session and one (1) 
special meeting were held in 2017/18.
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4.5 Board Committees

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

Finance and Admin Sub-Committee 7 5 Mr Z. Tini (Chairperson); 

Ms R. Moodley;

Mr L. Holbrook; 

Mr G. Mpumza;

Mr L. Jack

Planning and Programmes 

Sub-Committee

4 5 Mr P. Ndendela (Chairperson); 

Mr G. Mpumza;

Mr D. Claassen;

Mr X. Malamlela;

Prof N. Monde

Audit, Risk & ICT Committee 5 6 Ms L. Smith (Chairperson);

Ms R. Moodley (Board Representative);

Mr N. Ravgee;

Ms W. Dukuza;

Mr C. Sparg;

Ms Z. Ngcwabe

4.6 Remuneration of Board Members

The Board remuneration is discussed in the annual financial statements section.  The remuneration of the board has 
been determined through benchmarking with other entities in the province. Going forward these benchmarks will be 
reviewed in line with Treasury Regulations and in consultation with the executive authority.

Name Remuneration Other allowance Other re-imbursements 
(mainly travel)

Total

MEC M Qhoboshiyane NIL NIL NIL NIL

Mr M. Matutu NIL NIL NIL NIL

Mr M. Toyis R26 600.00 NIL R11 110.40 R37 710.40

Ms R. Moodley R79 800.00 NIL R286.00 R80 086.00

Mr D. Claassen R49 400.00 NIL R15 114.00 R64 514.00

Mr G. Mpumza R30 400.00 NIL R480.00 R30 880.00

Mr P. Ndendela R61 600.00 NIL R960.00 R62 560.00

Mr K. Hustler R3 800.00 NIL R1 815.00 R5 615.00

Mr L. Holbrook R60 800.00 NIL R792.00 R61 592.00

Mr Z. Tini R68 900.00 NIL R396.00 R70 196.00

Mr X. Malamlela R53 200.00 NIL R396.00 R53 596.00

Prof N. Monde R30 400.00 NIL R4 752.00 R35 152.00

Mr L. Jack R49 400.00 NIL NIL R49 400.00

Mr M. Koyo R11 400.00 NIL R4 800.00 R16 200.00
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05
RISK MANAGEMENT
The scope of the internal audit is in line with the Treasury Regulations, and limited to the extent that only samples of 
transactions are selected to determine whether the network of risk management, control, and governance processes, as 
designed and represented by management, is adequate and functioning in a manner to determine whether management 
processes exist to ensure that: 
• Risks are appropriately identified and managed; 

• Interaction with the various governance groups occurs as needed; 

• Significant financial, managerial, and operating information is accurate, reliable and timely; 

• Employees’ actions are in compliance with policies, standards, procedures, and applicable laws and regulations; 

• Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently and adequately protected; 

• Programmes, plans and objectives are achieved; 

• Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in the entity’s control processes; and 

• Significant legislative or regulatory issues impacting the entity are recognised and addressed appropriately.

The Audit, Risk and ICT Committee is an integral component of the risk management process and specifically the 
committee oversees financial reporting risks, fraud risks associated to internal financial controls.  The committee 
considers the overall risk management processes in the Council.

Risk management is embedded in ECSECC activities, considered in the annual performance plan and operational 
plan, and is included in all project plans.  Risk management is also discussed at management committee meetings 
and is monitored and reported on a quarterly basis.  Risk management is also included in all managers’ performance 
agreements.

06
INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
The role of the internal Control Unit is played by the internal audit and the oversight role by the Audit, Risk and ICT 
Committee. The detailed discussion is expressed in section 7 below. 
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07
INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

7.1 The Audit Function at ECSECC

The internal controls, finances and performance information of ECSECC were reviewed and audited by the internal 
auditors. ECSECC’s internal audit function is outsourced. The summary of audit work performed in the year under review 
includes:
• Facilitation of organisation risk assessment;

• Review of annual financial statements;

• Ethics and compliance review;

• Audit of pre-determined objectives;

• Follow-up audits;

• IT general controls review;

• Programme/project performance review;

• Review of internal controls dashboard; 

• Update of charters; and

• Attendance to Risk and Audit Committee meetings.
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The Audit, Risk and ICT Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and meets at least four (4) times per 
annum as per its approved charter.  During the current year, in total four (4) meetings were held with one (1) special 
meeting. 

ECSECC Audit, Risk & ICT Committee Members Number of Meeting Attended

Ms L. Smith 5

Mr N. Ravgee 3

Ms W. Dukuza 5

Mr C. Sparg 4

Ms Z. Ngcwabe 1

Ms R. Moodley (Board Representative) 5

The table below discloses relevant information on the Audit, Risk & ICT Committee members:

Name Highest 
Qualification

Internal or external If internal, 
position in the 
public entity

Date appointed Date 
Resigned

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

Ms R. Moodley Honours in Human 
and Social Studies

Board Representative Board Member August 2016 Current 5

Ms L. Smith Chartered 
Accountant

External September 2016 Current 5

Mr N. Ravgee Chartered 
Accountant

External September 2016 Current 3

Ms W. Dukuza BProc

Admission Exams 
as an Attorney

Certificate in 
Labour Relations 
Management

External September 2016 Current 5

Mr C. Sparg Chartered 
Accountant

External September 2016 Current 4

Ms Z. Ngcwabe BSC Honours

Microsoft 
Certified Systems 
Engineering

Novell 6 Certified 
Administrator

Network Security 
Assessment and 
Proactive Defence

External September 2016 January 2018 1
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08
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
ECSECC has a compliance policy which regulates the state of compliance within the entity. Further, there are policies 
and procedures that employees abide by which are made available to each individual.  Provincial Treasury makes available 
to the Entity any changes to regulations that might have an impact on the Entity.  Lastly, ECSECC obtains some level of 
comfort from internal and external audits when it comes to compliance.

09
FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  
ECSECC has a Fraud Prevention Policy, a strategy and a plan in place. All these documents are communicated 
to employees and individuals are required to comply. Employees and other stakeholders can make use of the 
Whistleblowing Hotline administered by the Office of the Premier. ECSECC receives quarterly reports confirming any 
whistle blowing from the Office of the Premier. These are communicated to the Audit, Risk and ICT Committee. Further, 
employees are encouraged to make confidential disclosures should they suspect any instances of fraud within the 
organisation.

There have been no reports of fraudulent activities in the current financial year.

10
MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
ECSECC makes every available effort to minimise the risk of conflict of interest in all its business dealings. The entity 
has policies and procedures that assist in managing the risk. Further, employees are required to complete a disclosure 
of interest annually, including supply chain practitioners.  All Bid Adjudication and Evaluation Committee members also 
disclose their interest at every sitting. Members that are conflicted are excused from that specific seating.



2017 | 2018 ECSECC Annual Report60

11
CODE OF CONDUCT
ECSECC has a Code of Conduct that is signed by the employees on an annual basis. Each employee signs 
acknowledgement at the beginning of each financial year. We also conduct an information session once a year. Where 
there is a breach of the Code of Conduct the organisation deals with it within the prescripts of its disciplinary procedures 
and applicable legislation.

12
HEALTH, SAFETY AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
The organisation strives towards keeping a welcoming, safe and healthy working environment and has not experienced 
any health challenges or injury on duty in the period under review.

13
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ECSECC is a public entity responsible for advising government on socio-economic development policy choices. In 
addition, ECSECC is a non-profit-making entity and integral in its work is to provide advice that will ultimately lead to the 
qualitative change in the lives of the people. Consequently, ECSECC has no specific social responsibility programmes as 
this is integral to all its work.
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14
BOARD SECRETARY
ECSECC has not appointed a company secretary. The Executive Secretary & Chief Risk Officer plays the role of the 
Board Secretary and is responsible for driving the functionality and providing administrative support to the Board. 

CERTIFICATE BY COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ending 31 March 2018

Declaration by the Company Secretary in terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act. The Company has filed 
required returns and notices as required of a non-profit company in terms of the Companies Act, and all such returns and 
notices are true, correct and up-to-date.

____________________ 

Nozuko Somniso

Chief Risk Officer

NOTE: ECSECC has not appointed a Company Secretary. The Chief Risk Officer plays the role of the Board Secretary and 
is responsible for driving the functionality and providing administrative support to the Board.
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15  
AUDIT, RISK & ICT COMMITTEE REPORT
The committee is pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.  The table below discloses 
relevant information on the Audit Committee and new Audit, Risk & ICT Committee members:

ECSECC Audit, Risk & ICT Committee

Ms L. Smith

Mr N. Ravgee

Ms W. Dukuza

Mr C. Sparg

Ms Z. Ngcwabe

Ms R. Moodley (Board Representative)

15.1  Audit, Risk & ICT Committee Responsibility

The Audit, Risk & ICT Committee (hereinafter referred to as the Committee) is a sub-committee of the Eastern Cape 
Socio-Economic Consultative Council (hereinafter referred to as the Council), established to assist it in fulfilling its 
oversight responsibilities in terms of section 51 of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), No. 1 of 1999, read 
together with Treasury Regulation 27.1. The Committee’s mandate is to assist the Council specifically in matters relating 
to statutory and internal audits; internal controls; financial control and reporting; statutory compliance relative to the 
financial statements; performance; risk management and corporate governance.

The Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from the sections as stated above, has 
adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and 
has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

15.2  The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal control applied by the entity over financial risk and risk management is effective, efficient and 
transparent.

In line with the PFMA and Companies Act 2008 requirements, internal audit provides the committee and management 
with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective.  This is achieved by means of risk management 
process, as well as identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.

From the reports of the internal auditors, no matters were reported that indicate any material deficiencies in the system 
of internal control or any deviations therefrom. Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal controls was 
effective for the period under review.
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15.3  In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report

The public entity has submitted quarterly reports to the Accounting and Executive Authority.

15.4  Evaluation of Financial Statements and Annual Report 

The Committee has:
• Reviewed and discussed the financial statements to be included in the annual report;

• Reviewed accounting policies and practices;

• Reviewed the entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions.

The Committee recommended to the Accounting Authority, for their approval, that the financial statements and annual 
report be submitted for audit by the 31st May 2018.   

15.5  Internal Audit

The internal audit function is outsourced. The Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function operated effectively 
and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the entity in its audits. The Committee appreciates the good working 
relations between ECSECC and its internal auditors.   

15.6  Auditor’s Report
The Committee is pleased with and accepts the Auditor-General’s report for the year ended 31 March 2018. 

1  It is noted that for the disclosure on Board Directorship (List of Entities) the information is still being collected from Board members.  

____________________

L. Smith CA(SA), RA

Chairperson of the Audit, Risk & ICT Committee

Date:   08 August 2018
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PART D
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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01
INTRODUCTION

1.1 Overview of ECSECC HR Matters 

ECSECC implemented several human resource development programmes in the period under review.  Staff underwent 
internal training programmes with a view to further developing their skills and capabilities. The required submissions to 
the Department of Labour were made in time, examples given are the submissions according to the Compensation for 
Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act and Employment Equity Act. 

This financial year has also seen the Disaster Recovery Plan being amended in to ensure proper measures are in place in 
the event of a disaster.  

The performance management and development system was implemented during the financial year under review. 
Following are the other HR-related matters and achievements.

1.2 HR Priorities for 2017-2018 Financial Year and the Impact of these Priorities 

The main priorities for the financial year were to assess the alignment of ECSECC Human Resources policies with the 
amendments in labour legislation, meeting employment equity targets and assessing employee wellness. 

1.3 Workforce Planning Framework and Key Strategies to Attract and Recruit a Skilled 
and Capable Labour Workforce

ECSECC identifies the key capabilities required to achieve the organisation’s five-year strategic plan and its service 
excellence model. Based on the identified priorities, the agreed service excellence model and identified capabilities, the 
organisational design implications are then identified. The programmes that are needed to achieve the objectives are 
identified and together they form an organisational structure. This organisational structure is reviewed on an annual basis, 
as part of the annual planning process. It is then approved by the Board of Directors for implementation at the beginning 
of the financial year. ECSECC management fills the positions based on the approved organogram.

1.4 Employee Performance Management Framework

ECSECC uses a performance management and development system to manage the performance of employees. The 
performance management system that is used does not only seek to assess and enhance performance of employees 
but also seeks to create motivated employees who are resilient, take initiative, are innovative and are effective self-
leaders. The performance management system is structured such that it encourages employees to practice the 
organisational values that are reflected in the organisation’s five year strategic plan.

Performance reviews are done twice a year. The first review covers the first six months and the second review covers 
the whole financial year. Managers are encouraged to give feedback on employee performance throughout the financial 
year.
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1.5 Employee Wellness Programmes

ECSECC is in the process of aligning its wellness programme to the Public Service Employee Health and Wellness 
Strategic Framework to create a healthy and an enabling environment for the ECSECC workforce.

1.6 Policy Development 

The policies of ECSECC are approved by the Board of Directors. This final approval is preceded by consultations with 
management and employees of the organisation. There were no new human resource-related policies developed 
during the period under review, however, there were reviews and adjustments to existing policies (for example sexual 
harassment, study and training policy).

1.7 Highlight of Achievements

ECSECC submitted the amended Employment Equity Plan as per the requirements of the Department of Labour. 

1.8 Challenges faced by ECSECC

Budget cuts have resulted in performance bonuses not fully paid to employees. This may affect the morale of employee 
and reduction in staff performance and increase the number of resignations. Reduced budget also implies that the funds 
allocated for the capacity building of staff members were reduced. This may affect delivery and staff morale in the long 
run because employees are supposed to be continuously capacitated in order to ensure effective and quality delivery. 

1.9 Future Human Resources Plans and Goals

ECSECC is going to be placing emphasis on capacity development of staff by implementing a staff development plan 
that will assist the organisation to focus on professional efforts and identify individual work goals. 

There is also going to be a strong emphasis on employee health and wellness programmes that focusses on the physical 
and emotional well-being of employees.



2017 | 2018 ECSECC Annual Report68

02
HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

2.1 Expenditure

EXPENDITURE BY PROGRAMME

Programme Total 
Expenditure 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

Personnel Cost as 
a Percent of Total 

Expenditure

No. of 
Employees

Average Personnel 
Cost Per Employee 

(R’000)

Finance, Corporate Affairs, 
Strategic, Operations and 
Knowledge Management

15,434,215 15,047,579 97% 24 626,982

Economic Governance 4,930,353 4,827,370 98% 4.5 1,072,749

Infrastructure Governance 3,014,807 2,938,839 97% 3 979,613

Strategic Governance Support 865,177 837,131 97% 1 837,131

Human Resource Development 2,762,026 2,710,212 98% 3.5 774,346

HIV/AIDS 5,459,613 5,289,194 97% 6 881,532

TOTAL 32,466,191 31,650,352 97%  42 753,579

EXPENDITURE BY GRADE

Salary Bands Personnel 
Expenditure 

% of Total 
Personnel Cost

No. of 
Employees

Average Personnel Cost 
Per Employee 

Lower skilled (Grade A – B) 2,771,359 9% 10 277,136

Skilled (Grade C) 6,155,361 20% 11 559,578

Highly skilled (Grade D & S) 13,952,586 46% 16 872,037

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 5,751,024 19% 7 821,575

Chief executive officer and chief financial 
officer (Grade E)

3,019,994 7% 2 1,509,997

TOTAL 31,650,325 100% 46 688,051

2.2 Performance Rewards
Programme/Activity/Objective Performance Rewards Personnel 

Expenditure 
% of Performance Rewards  to Total 

Personnel Cost 

Lower skilled (Grade A-B) 129,071 2,771,359 5%

 Skilled (Grade C) 253,865 6,155,361 4%

 Highly skilled (Grade D & S) 565,788 13,952,586 4%

Highly skilled with supervision 
(Grade D3)

233,832 5,751,024 4%

 Chief executive officer (Grade E) 152 221 3,019,994 5%

TOTAL 1,334,776 31,650,325 4%
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2.3 Training costs 

Programme/Activity/
Objective

Personnel 
Expenditure 

Training 
Expenditure

Training Expenditure 
as a % of Personnel 

Cost

No. of 
Employees 

Trained

Avg. Training  
Cost Per 

Employee

Finance, Corporate Affairs, 
Strategic, Operations and 
Knowledge Management

15,047,579 97,101 1% 8 12,138

Economic Governance 4,827,370 10,493 0% 1 10,493

Infrastructure Governance 2,938,839 19,413 1% 2 9,707

Strategic Governance Support 837,131 11,816 1% 1 11,816

Human Resource Development 2,710,121 0%

HIV/AIDS 5,289,194 68,000 1% 2 34,00

TOTAL 31,650,325 206,823 1% 14 14,773

2.4 Employment and Vacancies

Programme  2017/2018 Number 
of Employees

 (01 April 2017)

Number 
of Posts 

Approved 

Number of 
Employees 

(31 March 2018)

2017/2018 
Vacancies 

(31 March 2018)

% of Vacancy 
**

Administration and Finance 16 17 16 1 5.8%

Strategy, Operations and 
Knowledge Management

7 7 7 0 0%

Economic Governance 3.5 4,5 3.5 1 28%

Strategic Governance and 
Infrastructure Support 
Programme

4 5 4 1 20%

Eastern Cape Aids Council 7 8 6 2 25%

Human Resource 
Development 

3.5 4.5 3.5 0* 0%

TOTAL 41 46 40 5 11%

*Note: One post was removed from the organogram during the year. 

** Note: Only three posts were vacant (unfunded) for the full financial year. Remaining posts were vacant for parts of the 
year only due to resignations and internal movement. 

Programme/Activity/Objective 2017/2018 

No. of Employees 

2017/2018 

Approved Posts

2017/2018 

No. of Employees

2017/2018

 Vacancies

% of 

Vacancies

Top management 2 2 1 1 50%

Senior management 4 5 5 0 0%

Professional qualified 13 16 13 3 18.8%

Skilled 12 12 11 1 8%

Semi-skilled 8 8 8 0 0%

Unskilled 2 2 2 0 0%

TOTAL 41 45 40 5 11%
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2.5 Employment changes 

Salary Band Employment at Beginning of 
Period

Appointments Terminations Employment at End of the 
Period

Top management 2 0 1 1

Senior management 4 1 0 5

Professional qualified 13 2 1 13

Skilled 12 0 1 11

Semi-skilled 8 0 0 8

Unskilled 2 0 0 2

TOTAL 41 4 3 40

2.6 Reasons for staff leaving 

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving

Death 0 0

Resignation 3 100%

Dismissal 0 0

Retirement 0 0

Ill health 0 0

Expiry of contract 0 0

Other 0 0

TOTAL 3 0

Staff who resigned left the organisation to pursue career movements, full time studies or for personal reasons. 

2.7 Labour relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action 

Nature of Disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal warning 0

Written warning 0

Final written warning 0

Dismissal 0
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2.8 Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

Levels MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top management 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0

Senior management 3 3 0 0 0 0 1 1

Professional qualified 2 3 2 0 0 0 2 2

Skilled 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 8 10 2 0 0 0 4 3

Levels FEMALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top management 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior management 4 3 0 0 0 0 1 1

Professional qualified 4 3 1 1 0 0 0 0

Skilled 7 7 0 0 1 1 0 0

Semi-skilled 8 8 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 26 24 1 1 1 1 1 1

Levels Disabled Staff

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 1 1 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 1 0 0 0

Overall, the organisation has performed beyond provincial employment equity targets. However, due to the small size of 
the organisation and non-filling of posts in the year under review, not all targets for sub-categories were met. All targets 
will be met by 2020. 
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PART E
FINACIAL INFORMATION
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council (ECSECC) set 
out on pages 78 to 111, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, the statement 
of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow statement and the statement of 
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ECSECC as at 
31 March 2018, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the South 
African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the 
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). 

Basis for opinion

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of this auditor’s report. 

4. I am independent of the public entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit 
in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA 
code.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements

6. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the SA standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal control as the 
accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the ECSECC’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the accounting authority either intends to liquidate the public entity or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor-General’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

9. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this 
auditor’s report.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE 
ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

Introduction and scope

10. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice 
issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information 
against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report. I performed 
procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

11. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance 
planning documents of the public entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the 
performance indicators/ measures included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any 
disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that 
may be included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these 
matters. 

12. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria 
developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the 
following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the year ended 
31 March 2018:

Programmes Pages in the annual performance report

Programme 2 – Economic governance 32 - 36

Programme 3 – Infrastructure governance 37 - 39

Programme 5 – Human resource development 42 - 43

Programme 6 – HIV and AIDS 44 - 48

13. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and 
whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further 
procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the 
reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

14. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 
following programmes:

• Programme 2 – Economic governance

• Programme 3 – Infrastructure governance

• Programme 5 – Human resource development

• Programme 6 – HIV and AIDS

Other matters

15. I draw attention to the matter below. 

Achievement of planned targets

16. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 28 to 48 for information on the achievement of planned targets for 
the year. 
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF 
COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

Introduction and scope

17. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 
findings on the compliance of the public entity with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to 
identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

18. I did not raise material findings on compliance with the specific matters in key legislation set out in the general notice 
issued in terms of the PAA.

Other information

19. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report , which includes the directors’ report, the audit committee’s report and the company 
secretary’s certificate as required by the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act). 
The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report. 

20. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance 
with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

21. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected programmes presented 
in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

22. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. After I receive and read this 
information, and if I conclude that there is a material misstatement, I am required to communicate the matter to 
those charged with governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other information is not 
corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is 
corrected this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

23. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and 
compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it.

East London

31 July 2018
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ANNEXURE AUDITOR-GENERAL’S 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance 
information for selected programmes and on the public entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject 
matters.

Financial statements

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I also: 

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the public entity’s internal control.

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the accounting authority.

• conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Eastern Cape socio economic consultative council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available 
to me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a public entity to 
cease continuing as a going concern.

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance

3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my 
audit. 

4. I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a 
bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. Statement of Financial Position as at 31 
March 2018
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STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2018 2017 Restated*

ASSETS

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions 3 4,986 4,608

Prepayments 4 813,341 1,102,408

Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,369,830 3,096,827

4,188,157 4,203,843

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 6 2,382,588 2,968,376

Intangible assets 7 371,801 347,468

Other financial assets 8 183,310 144,778

Rental deposit 9 383,589 364,435

3,321,288 3,825,057

Total Assets 7,509,445 8,028,900

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 10 9,816 108,759

Payables from exchange transactions 11 3,229,300 3,009,847

Funds to be surrendered 12 2,766,564 2,602,694

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 13 - 482,876

6,005,680 6,204,176

Non-Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 10 - 9,816

Operating lease liability 14 513,390 564,115

513,390 573,931

Total Liabilities 6,519,070 6,778,107

Net Assets 990,375 1,250,793

Accumulated surplus 990,375 1,250,793



2017 | 2018 ECSECC Annual Report 79

Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2018 2017 Restated*

Revenue 15 43,727,761 39,587,941

Other income 16 12,093 51,613

Operating expenses 17 (44,440,359) (39,123,041)

Operating expenses (700,505) 516,513

Investment revenue 18 412,065 270,075

Fair value adjustments 38,532 (2,407)

Finance costs 19 (10,510) (25,573)

(Deficit) surplus for the year (260,418) 758,608
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STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Figures in Rand Accumulated

surplus

Total net

assets

Opening balance as previously reported 304,248 304,248

Adjustments

Correction of errors 187,937 187,937

Balance at 01 April 2016 as restated* 492,185 492,185

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 758,608 758,608

Total changes 758,608 758,608

Reconciled as:

Opening balance as previously reported 961,370 961,370

Adjustments

Correction of errors (accumulated for 2016 and 2017) 289,423 289,423

Balance at 01 April 2017 as restated* 1,250,793 1,250,793

Changes in net assets

Deficit for the year (260,418) (260,418)

Total changes (260,418) (260,418)

Balance at 31 March 2018 990,375 990,375

* See Note 30
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2018 2017 Restated*

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Rendering of services 3,700,000 1,750,000

Grants 39,672,044 37,550,020

Interest income 420,143 289,293

Dividends received 4,986 4,607

43,797,173 39,593,920

Payments

Employee costs (32,330,870) (29,520,725)

Suppliers (10,762,072) (9,323,473)

Finance costs (10,510) (25,573)

(43,103,452) (38,869,771)

Net cash flows from operating activities 20 693,721 724,149

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6 (302,283) (2,321,146)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 14,657 80,988

Purchase of intangible assets 7 (24,333) (5,456)

Net cash flows from investing activities (311,959) (2,245,614)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Finance lease obligation (108,759) (93,696)

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 273,003 (1,615,161)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,096,827 4,711,988

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 3,369,830 3,096,827
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STATEMENT OF 
COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand Approved 
budget

Adjustments Final 
Budget

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis

Difference 
between 

final budget 
and actual

Reference

Statement of Financial Performance

REVENUE

Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services - 4,010,000 4,010,000 5,360,000 1,350,000 1

Other income - 210,000 210,000 224,657 14,657

Interest received 300,000 - 300,000 407,079 107,079 2

Dividends received - - - 4,986 4,986

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions

300,000 4,220,000 4,520,000 5,996,722 1,476,722

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants 39,158,000 - 39,158,000 39,158,000 -

GIZ grant - - - 595,681 595,681 3

Total revenue from nonexchange 
transactions

39,158,000 - 39,158,000 39,753,681 595,681

Total revenue 39,458,000 4,220,000 43,678,000 45,750,403 2,072,403

EXPENDITURE

Employee related costs (30,972,233) (1,452,000) (32,424,233) (32,330,870) 93,363

General Expenses (8,485,767) (2,225,000) (10,710,767) (10,254,520) 456,247 4

GIZ expenditure - - - (1,008,630) (1,008,630) 3

Total expenditure (39,458,000) (3,677,000) (43,135,000) (43,594,020) (459,020)

Operating surplus - 543,000 543,000 2,156,383 1,613,383

Capital expenditure - (543,000) (543,000) (568,621) (25,621) 5

Surplus - - - 1,587,762 1,587,762

Actual Amount on Comparable Basis 
as Presented in the Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement

- - - 1,587,762 1,587,762

RECONCILIATION

Basis difference

Employee related costs (135,321)

General expenses 163,978

GIZ income 412,949

Government grants (163,870)

Other income (212,564)

Capital expenditure 568,621

Depreciation and amortization (885,506)

Fair value adjustment 38,532

Rendering of services (1,634,999)

Actual Amount in the Statement of 
Financial Performance

(260,418)
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STATEMENT OF 
COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand Approved 
budget

Adjustments Final 
Budget

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis

Difference 
between 

final budget 
and actual

Reference

The ECSECC budget was adjusted during the year due to other income (mainly receiving of SLA funds and funds rolled 
over from prior year) being received in addition to the original budget. The funds were allocated to expenditure based on 
priorities.

1.  During the prior year ECSECC entered into Service Level Agreements with OR Tambo District Municipality and 
Nyandeni Local Municipality. During the current year ECSECC entered into a similar agreement with Alfred Nzo 
District Municipality. The Alfred Nzo District Municipality agreement is still in progress, funds received during this 
financial year will be allocated to the 2018/19 financial year to cover the costs in terms of the deliverables. This 
agreement is expected to be completed by November 2018.

2.  Interest received during the year exceeded budget based on the fact that the first tranche from OTP was higher than 
cash flow demands for quarter one in order to ensure cashflow for salaries in the first month of quarter two was 
sufficiently covered.

3.  The Service Level Agreement with GIZ was extended into the 2017/18 financial year which has resulted in the 3rd 
and 4th tranches being received in 2017/18. The agreement was originally budgeted for and was scheduled for 
completion in 2016/17. This therefore is reflecting an over collection and an over spending on this grant. The opening 
balance of the grant of R482 876 added with the additional amount received in 2017/18 of R595 681 plus interest 
earned on the grant of R11 711 less the expenditure of R1 008 630 and less the amount repaid of R81 638 has 
resulted in a nil effect on the budget of ECSECC.

4.  Underspending on general expenditure is a result of a poor response on the procurement process related to IT 
equipment. A request has been made to Treasury to allow for these funds to be rolled over to ensure that the 
process can be restarted. This item falls part of the IT disaster recovery plan which is required in terms of IT 
governance.

5.  The overspending in capital expenditure is immaterial in value and has been funded out of the underspending in 
expenditure.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public 
Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

The Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council (ECSECC) is an entity domiciled in South Africa. The address of 
ECSECC’s registered office is 12 Gloucester Road, Vincent, East London, 5201. ECSECC is involved in policy, planning 
and development facilitation support to provincial government and other stakeholders in the Eastern Cape. ECSECC is a 
Schedule 3C Public Entity as defined in the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA).

The annual financial statements were authorised on 24 May 2018 by the Board of Directors for issue on 31 May 2018. 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African 
Rand, which is the entity’s functional currency.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these 
annual financial statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate 
as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and 
the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 
estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.

Motor vehicle residual value

The entity’s management determines the estimated residual value for the entity’s motor vehicle which affects 
the related depreciation charges. This estimate is based on industry norm. Management will amend the 
depreciation charge in the future should the estimated residual value change.

Useful life assesment

The entity’s management determines the estimated useful life of an item of Property, plant and equipment 
based on the entity’s expected usage of the asset. The useful life is assessed at each reporting date and if 
expectations differ from previous estimate, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

The entity’s management determines the estimated useful life of an item of Intangible assets based on the 
entity’s expected usage of the asset. The useful life is assessed at each reporting date and if expectations differ 
from previous estimate, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. An intangible asset is 
regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to 
the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods 
or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one reporting 
period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

• the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset 
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a 
combination of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their 
estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item       Average useful life

Furniture and fixtures    6.67 - 15 years

Motor vehicles      5 - 10 years

Office equipment     6.67 - 15 years

Computer equipment     3 - 15 years

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at least at of each reporting date. 
If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate 
unless expectations differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the 
item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further 
economic benefits or service potential expected from the use or disposal of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or 
deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the 
item.

1.4 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licenced, rented 

or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of 
whether the entity intends to do so; or

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are 
transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it 
were in the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 

flow to the entity; and

• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
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The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist 
over the useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is 
measured at its fair value as at that date.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no 
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. 
Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there 
is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line 
basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator 
that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is 
amortised over its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not 
recognised as intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item     Useful life

Computer software   3 - 5 years or indefinite

1.5 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual

interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction 
(directly or through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 
discharge an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of 
financial position.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability 
(or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the 
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount 
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows 
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall 
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the 
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange 
Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the 
expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when 
it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial 
instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or 
group of financial instruments).
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Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
• cash;

• a residual interest of another entity; or

• a contractual right to:

 » receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
 » exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 
favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial 
asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, 
issued or disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
• instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:

 » it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or

 » on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together 
and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;

 » non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are 
designated at fair value at initial recognition; and

 » financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or 
financial instruments at cost.

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class       Category

Receivables from exchange transactions   Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents    Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Rental deposit      Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets     Financial asset measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement 
of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class       Category

Payables from exchange transactions   Financial liability measured at amortised cost
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Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
• Financial instruments at fair value.

• Financial instruments at amortised cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not 
active, the entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to 
establish what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated 
by normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially 
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used 
by market participants to price the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates 
of prices obtained in actual market transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes 
maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that 
market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for 
pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices 
from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or 
based on any available observable market data.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is 
recognised in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or 
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

1.6 Prepayments

A prepaid expense is an expenditure paid for in one accounting period, but for which the underlying asset will not be 
consumed until a future period. When the asset is eventually consumed, it is charged to expense.

A prepaid expense is carried on the Statement of Financial Position of the entity as a current asset until it is consumed. 
If a prepaid expense were likely to not be consumed within the next year, it would instead be classified on the 
Statement of Financial Position as a non-current asset. Once consumption has occurred, the prepaid expense is 
removed from the Statement of Financial Position and is instead reported in that period as an expense on the Statement 
of Financial Performance.
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1.7 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element 
separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts 
equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease 
obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate 
implicit in the lease. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of 
the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a 
constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The 
difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an 
operating lease asset or liability.

1.8 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past 
practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will 
accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties 
that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
• wages, salaries and social security contributions;

• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the 
absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees 
render the related employee service; and

• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related service.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that 
increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure 
the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a 
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has 
a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of 
the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the 
payments.
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1.9 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligation; and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present 
obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity 
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement 
does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed 
if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, 
to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. 
This increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision.

Funds to be surrendered are classified as provisions.

1.10 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result 
in the outflow of cash and is budgeted for in the current financial year.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows 
result in an

increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly 
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates.
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Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated 
with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The 
outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised 
on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents 
the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is 
postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is 
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of 
completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interest

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest is recognised when:
• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, 

and

• The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the entity’s right to receive payment has 
been established.

1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which 
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, 
and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another 
entity in exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity 
either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to 
another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the 
extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises 
an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
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Grant funding

Revenue from non-exchange transactions is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the 
entity.

An unconditional grant is recognised in surplus or deficit as other income when the grant becomes receivable.

Other government grants are recognsed initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance 
that they will be received and the entity will comply with the conditions associated with the grant, and are then 
recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

As an entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from non-exchange 
transactions recognised as an asset, it shall reduce the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognise an 
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

1.13 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.14 Budget information

The entity is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisation’s (or equivalent), 
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by the entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used 
in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance 
outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2017/04/01 to 2018/03/31.

The annual financial statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation 
between the statement of financial performance and the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included 
in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.15 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South 
African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South 
Africa, only entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including 
those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to 
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to 
influence, or be influenced by management in their dealings with the entity.

1.16 Changes in accounting policy, estimates and errors

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes 
in estimates are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 
3 requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative 
effect of the error. In such cases the entity shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the 
earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance 
with GRAP 3 requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the 
cumulative effect of the change in policy. In such cases the entity shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities 
and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.
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2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

GRAP 1:  Presentation of Financial Statements
GRAP 2:  Cash Flow Statements
GRAP 3:   Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
GRAP 5:  Borrowing Costs
GRAP 9:  Revenue from Exchange Transactions
GRAP 13:  Leases
GRAP 14:  Events After the Reporting Date
GRAP 17:  Property, Plant and Equipment
GRAP 19:  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
GRAP 21:  Impairment of Non-cash generating Assets
GRAP 23:  Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
GRAP 24:  Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
GRAP 25:  Employee Benefits
GRAP 26:  Impairment of Cash-generating assets
GRAP 31:  Intangible Assets
GRAP 104:  Financial Instruments

2.2 Standards and Interpretations early adopted

The entity has chosen to early adopt the following standards and interpretations:

Standard / Interpretation:   Effective date:    Expected impact

     Years beginning on or after
GRAP 20: Related Parties    Not yet effective     The impact of the 
           amendments is not material

2.3 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2018:

Standard/ Interpretation:        Expected impact
GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor     No signifcant impact
GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables        No significant impact
GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents     No significant impact
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017

3. Receivables from exchange transactions

Dividend receivable 4,986 4,608

The amount of R 4 986 (2017: R 4 608) receivable from Sanlam Ltd relates to dividends receivable on shares held by 
ECSECC by virtue of the Sanlam demutualization. (Refer to note 8).

4. Prepayments

Rental - 203,877

Security - 456

Subscriptions 813,341 898,075

813,341 1,102,408

5. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 5,000 4,909

Bank balances 3,364,830 3,091,918

3,369,830 3,096,827

Cash and cash equivalents have not been pledged as collateral.

Cash and cash equivalents includes the following 3rd party funds:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts - 482,876

These are funds received from Deutsche Gesellschaft Fur International

Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) in terms of a Service Level Agreement.

Income received in advance 1,333,333 1,358,334

These are funds received from OR Tambo District Municipality, Nyandeni Local

Municipality and Alfred Nzo Districty Municipality in terms of a Service Level

Agreement for the delivery of services which is work in progress at year end.

1,333,333 1,841,210
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017

6. Property, plant and equipment

2018 2017

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Furniture and fittings 1,716,521 (1,419,723) 296,798 1,718,506 (1,342,955) 375,551

Motor vehicles 187,898 (71,667) 116,231 187,898 (53,828) 134,070

Office equipment 987,922 (762,388) 225,534 978,841 (604,983) 373,858

Computer equipment 3,772,243 (2,028,218) 1,744,025 3,540,278 (1,455,381) 2,084,897

Total 6,664,584 (4,281,996) 2,382,588 6,425,523 (3,457,147) 2,968,376

Reconciliation of property, plant and 
equipment - 2018

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Furniture and fittings 375,551 - (1,241) (77,512) 296,798

Motor vehicles 134,070 - - (17,839) 116,231

Office equipment 373,858 9,081 - (157,405) 225,534

Computer equipment 2,084,897 293,202 (1,323) (632,751) 1,744,025

2,968,376 302,283 (2,564) (885,507) 2,382,588

Reconciliation of property, plant and 
equipment - 2017

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Furniture and fittings 462,894 - (6,548) (80,795) 375,551

Motor vehicles 151,910 - - (17,840) 134,070

Office equipment 528,081 13,305 (2,409) (165,119) 373,858

Computer equipment 381,494 2,307,841 (20,418) (584,020) 2,084,897

1,524,379 2,321,146 (29,375) (847,774) 2,968,376

Pledged as security

ECSECC has not pledged any of its property, plant and equipment as security

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)

Office equipment - 87,608

The average lease term was 3 years, refer to note 10: Finance lease obligation.

Other information

Property, plant and equipment fully depreciated and still in use (Gross carrying amount)

Office equipment 351,512 64,796

Furniture and fittings 72,865 13,035

Computer equipment 342,180 141,423

766,557 219,254
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7. Intangible assets

2018 2017

Cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Computer software 371,801 - 371,801 347,468 - 347,468

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018
Opening 
balance Additions Total

Computer software 347,468 24,333 371,801

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017
Opening 
balance Additions Total

Computer software 342,012 5,456 347,468

Pledged as security

ECSECC has not pledged any of its intangible assets as security.

Other information

Intangible assets with indefinite lives:

Computer software 371,801 347,468

The useful life of computer software has been assessed as being indefinite.

It is not bound by any expiry period as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to 
generate net cash flows for the entity.

In determining the indefinite useful life assets, consideration was given to the expected usage of the asset by the 
entity; product life cycle; obsolescence; market stability and the level of maintenance expenditure required to obtain the 
expected future economic benefits. Some of the computer software packages have been in existence in excess of 10 
years. A licence fee is payable annually for the latest updates to the package to ensure it maintains the expected future 
economic benefits to the entity as well as for continued use by the entity.

Factors that would be considered when assessing indefinite useful life assets for impairment include:
• The intention of the entity to continue using the software package and renew the licence.

• The development of a more advanced software package with the intention of management to change the current 
software package within the available budget.

• Technological obsolescence of the software package.
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8. Other financial assets

Designated at fair value

Listed shares 183,310 144,778

2 149 shares are held in Sanlam Ltd and are valued at fair value based on the share price traded in an 
active market.

Non-current assets

Designated at fair value 183,310 144,778

Financial assets at fair value

Fair values of financial assets measured or disclosed at fair value

Sanlam Shares 183,310 144,778

Sanlam demutualized in 1998 and all policy holders were issued free shares. These shares were issued 
to ECSECC by virtue of the policies held and were not purchased or applied for.

The shares are traded in an active market and the fair value was determined using the share price at 31 March.

9. Rental deposit

Office building 383,589 364,435

The deposit amounting to R 330 659 was paid in April 2015 to the lessor as per the requirements of the office accommodation lease 
agreement. The deposit including interest due amounts to R 383 589 (2017: R 364 435).

10. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 9,939 119,269

- in second to fifth year inclusive - 9,939

9,939 129,208

less: future finance charges (123) (10,633)

Present value of minimum lease payments 9,816 118,575

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- within one year 9,816 108,759

- in second to fifth year inclusive - 9,816

9,816 118,575

Non-current liabilities - 9,816

Current liabilities 9,816 108,759

9,816 118,575

The average lease term was 3 years, and the average effective borrowing rate was 1.25% (2017: 1.25%).

There is no contingent rental payable on the leasing arrangements.

No restrictions are imposed by the lease arrangements.
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11. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 500,400 338,910

Income received in advanced - contract in process 1,333,333 1,358,334

Accrued leave pay 1,292,701 1,157,380

Employee bonus saving accrual 102,866 155,223

3,229,300 3,009,847

Income received in advance relates to funds received in terms of Service Level Agreements entered into for the delivery 
of services to municipalities. At year end these services are work in progress for Alfred Nzo District Municipality and in 
2016/17 the services were work in progress for OR Tambo District Municipality and Nyandeni Local Municipality.

12. Funds to be surrendered

Refunds arising from funds to be surrendered 2,766,564 2,602,694

The surrender relates to the possible repayment of funds to the Revenue Fund.

Funds to be surrendered

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,602,694 3,973,019

Prior year under/(over) provision (2,602,694) (3,973,019)

Additions 2,766,564 2,602,694

2,766,564 2,602,694

Movement recognised in revenue (refer to note 15)

Opening balance 2,602,694 3,973,019

Closing balance (2,766,564) (2,602,694)

Funds surrendered - -

(163,870) 1,370,325

Funds to be surrendered - reconciliation

Cash and cash equivalents 3,369,830 3,096,827

Less: Trade payables (500,400) (338,910)

Less: Employee bonus saving accrual (102,866) (155,223)

2,766,564 2,602,694

In terms of section 53 of PFMA, ECSECC as a Public Entity may not accumulate surpluses unless the prior written 
approval of the Provincial Treasury has been obtained.

 The funds to be surrendered value includes 3rd party funds and funds that have been committed. A roll over request for 
these funds has been submitted to Provincial Treasury. The following items are included in the roll over request:

Funds to be rolled over

Income received in advance - contract in process 1,333,333 1,358,334

Unspent conditional grants and receipts - 482,876

Committed expenditure 812,412 480,723

2,145,745 2,321,933
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13. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

GIZ - 482,876

The Deutsche Gesellschaft Fur International Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) has allocated funds to ECSECC for the carrying out of 
specific objectives by the Eastern Cape Aids Council (ECAC). The liability will be recognised in income as the expenses 
are incurred against the grant. The agreement came to an end in August 2017.

14. Operating lease liability

Non-current liabilities 513,390 564,115

The Entity has entered into an operating lease for operating premises. Leased property remains with the lessor 
throughout the lease term and upon the expiration of the lease agreement.

15. Revenue

15.1 Revenue from non exchange transactions

Office of The Premier 38,994,130 38,381,325

GIZ conditional grant 1,008,630 814,950

40,002,760 39,196,275

Office of The Premier

In terms of the Service Level Agreement between ECSECC and OTP, this grant is used to fund the core functions of the organisation.

Grants received 39,158,000 37,011,000

Funds to be surrendered movement (refer to note 12) (163,870) 1,370,325

38,994,130 38,381,325

15.2 Revenue from exchange transactions

Nyandeni Local Municipality 375,000 125,000

OR Tambo District Municipality 2,233,334 266,666

Alfred Nzo District Municipality 1,116,667 -

3,725,001 391,666

ECSECC has entered into Service Level Agreements for the rendering of services with these municipalities. The 
deliverables and timeframe’s have been agreed upon with the respective municipality. During the year the OR Tambo 
District Municipality and Nyandeni Local Municipality deliverables were completed in terms of the Service Level 
Agreements.

Total Revenue 43,727,761 39,587,941
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16. Other income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 12,093 51,613

Consists of:

Compensation from 3rd parties (including insurance payouts) 14,657 80,988

Book value of assets disposed and compensated by 3rd parties (lost or damaged) (1,241) (20,566)

Book value of other assets disposed (donated or scrapped) (1,323) (8,809)

12,093 51,613

17. Operating expenses
Operating expenses for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Employee related costs (note 23) 32,466,191 29,524,535

General expenses (note 22) 11,070,066 8,740,616

Depreciation and amortization 885,506 847,774

Repairs and maintenance 18,596 10,116

44,440,359 39,123,041

18. Investment revenue

Dividend revenue

Listed financial assets - Local 4,986 4,607

Interest revenue

Bank 387,925 246,696

Interest on deposit 19,154 18,772

407,079 265,468

412,065 270,075

19. Finance costs

Finance lease 10,510 25,573



2017 | 2018 ECSECC Annual Report 101

Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

NOTES
TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Rand 2018 2017

20. Cash generated from operations

(Deficit) surplus (260,418) 758,608

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 885,506 847,774

Gain on sale of assets and liabilities (12,093) (51,613)

Fair value adjustments (38,532) 2,407

Movements in operating lease liability (50,725) 135,330

Changes in working capital:

Receivables from exchange transactions (378) 29,255

Rental deposit (19,154) (18,773)

Prepayments 289,067 (473,717)

Payables from exchange transactions 219,454 1,117,308

Funds to be surrendered 163,870 (1,370,325)

Unspent conditional grants and receipts (482,876) (252,105)

693,721 724,149

21. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments

2018

Financial assets At fair value
At amortised 

cost Total

Receivables from exchange transactions - 4,986 4,986

- 3,369,830 3,369,830

- 383,589 383,589

183,310 - 183,310

183,310 3,758,405 3,941,715

Financial liabilities
At amortised 

cost Total

Payables from exchange transactions 1,895,967 1,895,967

2017

Financial assets At fair value
At amortised 

cost Total

Receivables from exchange transactions - 4,608 4,608

- 3,096,827 3,096,827

- 364,435 364,435

144,778 - 144,778

144,778 3,465,870 3,610,648

Financial liabilities
At amortised 

cost Total

Payables from exchange transactions 1,651,513 1,651,513
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22. General expenses

Advertising 37,199 25,227

Auditors remuneration 1,114,621 1,081,480

Bank charges 12,575 13,862

Cleaning 66,818 79,755

Computer expenses 31,282 27,658

Consulting and professional fees 1,161,537 446,667

Hire 104,149 83,385

Insurance 101,966 87,671

Lease rentals on operating lease 2,461,039 2,461,038

Postage and courier 352 -

Printing and stationery 96,812 60,791

Security 325,193 298,901

Subscriptions and membership fees 1,306,230 746,541

Telephone and fax 314,617 380,596

Travel and workshop 2,768,857 1,653,105

Electricity 291,219 254,139

General expenses 69,901 67,800

Publications 134,598 290,447

Board fees 671,101 681,553

11,070,066 8,740,616

23. Employee related costs

Basic 30,126,140 28,648,209

Performance bonus 1,334,776 -

UIF 152,942 152,903

Group life insurance 609,043 668,124

Compensation commissioner 36,467 41,435

Staff training 206,823 13,864

32,466,191 29,524,535

24. Auditors’ remuneration

Fees 1,114,621 1,081,480
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25. Commitments

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 2,712,705 2,511,764

- in second to fifth year inclusive 1,902,417 4,615,122

4,615,122 7,126,886

Lease rental on straight line basis (note 22) 2,461,039 2,461,038

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an 
average term of five years. No contingent rent is payable. Rental escalates by 8% annually on 1 December each year.

Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

• Property, plant and equipment - Computer equipment 238,861 -

• Property, plant and equipment - Furniture and fittings 3,144 -

242,005 -

Authorised operational expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

• Professional fees 348,926 160,368

• Publications 8,299 -

• Insurance - 101,966

• Subscriptions 150,636 177,612

• General 56,066 7,777

• Travel 6,480 33,000

570,407 480,723

Total commitments

Authorised capital expenditure 242,005 -

Authorised operational expenditure 570,407 480,723

812,412 480,723

26. Contingencies
The entity has no contingent liabilities at period end.
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27. Related parties

Relationships

Members Refer to note 28

Government department - controlling department Eastern Cape Office of the Premier

Related party transactions

Government Grant

Eastern Cape Office of the Premier 39,158,000 37,011,000

28. Member’s and prescribed officer’s emoluments

2018 Basic salary
Allowances and 

leave pay Bonus Total

A. Murray 571,951 88,105 84,882 744,938

A. Zinja 1,291,621 9,000 67,339 1,367,960

L. Mosana 906,972 11,458 53,644 972,074

2,770,544 108,563 205,865 3,084,972

2017 Basic salary Allowances Total

A. Murray 1,431,679 18,000 1,449,679

A. Zinja 1,126,457 9,000 1,135,457

2,558,136 27,000 2,585,136

Service contracts

The executive directors are subject to written employment agreements. The employment agreements regulate duties, 
remuneration, allowances, restraints, leave and notice periods of these executives. None of these service contracts 
exceed 5 years.

Service contract: A. Murray

- Start date: 01 May 2014

- End date : 30 April 2019

Service period: 5 years

A. Murray resigned effective 15 August 2017.

L. Mosana was appointed Acting Chief Executive Officer from 16 August 2017 to 31 March 2018 (includes total 
remuneration from August 2017 to March 2018).

Service contract: A. Zinja

- Start date: 01 July 2015

- End date : 30 June 2020

Service period: 5 years

Remaining - 2 years and 3 months
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Non-executive

2018 Members’ fees Total

G. Mpumza (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 30,880 30,880

K. Hustler (Resigned 28 April 2017) 5,615 5,615

Z. Tini (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 70,196 70,196

T. Toyis (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 37,710 37,710

D. Classen (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 64,514 64,514

P. Ndendela (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 62,560 62,560

R. Moodley (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 80,086 80,086

L. Holbrook (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 61,592 61,592

N. Monde (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 35,152 35,152

X. Malamlela (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 53,596 53,596

L. Jack (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 49,400 49,400

M. Koyo (Re-appointed 24 August 2017) 16,200 16,200

567,501 567,501

2017 Members’ fees Total

G. Mpumza (Re-appointed 30 August 2016) 61,196 61,196

K. Hustler (Re-appointed 30 August 2016) 25,749 25,749

Z. Tini (Re-appointed 30 August 2016) 70,476 70,476

T. Toyis (Re-appointed 30 August 2016) 33,860 33,860

D. Classen (Re-appointed 30 August 2016) 69,271 69,271

P. Ndendela(Re-appointed 30 August 2016) 58,676 58,676

R. Moodley (Re-appointed 30 August 2016) 76,000 76,000

L. Holbrook (Re-appointed 30 August 2016) 49,400 49,400

K. Meth (Resigned 30 August 2016) 5,206 5,206

N. Monde (Appointed 30 August 2016) 29,834 29,834

X. Malamlela (Re-appointed 30 August 2016) 49,928 49,928

L. Jack (Appointed 30 August 2016) 18,157 18,157

M. Koyo (Appointed 30 August 2016) 10,800 10,800

558,553 558,553
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Audit, Risk and ICT Committee

2018 Members’ fees Total

L. Smith 35,200 35,200

N. Ravgee 19,000 19,000

W. Dukuza 22,800 22,800

C. Sparg 26,600 26,600

103,600 103,600

2017 Members’ fees Total

L. Smith 19,600 19,600

N. Ravgee 7,600 7,600

W. Dukuza 11,400 11,400

C. Sparg 15,200 15,200

53,800 53,800

Audit Committee

2017 Members’ fees Total

N. Mnconywa (Chariperson) 19,400 19,400

R. Hill 7,600 7,600

G. Bana 7,600 7,600

L. Steele 7,600 7,600

42,200 42,200

From September 2016 the Audit Committee and the Risk Committee were merged to form the Audit, Risk and ICT 
Committee. The contracts of the previous committee members came to an end in August 2016.

Risk Committee

2017 Members’ fees Total

G. Bana (Chairperson) 11,600 11,600

C. Sparg 7,800 7,800

N. Hlongwane 7,600 7,600

27,000 27,000
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Key Management Personnel

2018 Position Service period Basic 
salary

Allowances Bonus Total

N. Mbovane Corporate Services 
Manager

Resigned effective 
31 March 2017

- - 45,706 45,706

J. Ewers (Total remuneration for April) Acting Corporate 
Affairs Manager

1 April 2017 - 
10 April 2017

84,927 500 - 85,427

N. Shenxane Human Resources 
Manger

11 April 2017 - 
31 March 2018

766,170 8,735 27,204 802,109

V. Dayile HIV/AIDS PM 1 April 2017 - 
31 March 2018

1,059,411 9,000 47,469 1,115,880

B. Mhlaba Strategic and 
Infrustructure 
Governance PM

1 April 2017 - 
31 March 2018

1,272,187 9,000 42,242 1,323,429

S. Hesjedal Chief Knowledge and 
Operations Officer

1 April 2017 - 
31 March 2018

1,167,271 9,000 45,067 1,221,338

C. Motsilili (Total remuneration from 
August 2017 to March 2018)

Acting HRD 
and Economic 
Governance PM

22 August 2017 - 
31 March 2018

824,441 6,000 44,893 875,334

L. Mosana (Total remuneration for 
April to July)

HRD and Economic 
Governance PM

1 April 2017 - 
31 March 2018

404,159 3,000 - 407,159

5,578,566 45,235 252,581 5,876,382
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Key Management Personnel

2017 Position Service period Basic 
salary

Allowances Total

N. Mbovane Corporate Services Manager 1 April 2016 - 
31 March 2017

1,022,709 9,000 1,031,709

J. Ewers (Total remuneration from 
October to March)

Acting Corporate Affairs Manager 7 October 2016 - 
2 February 2017
13 March 2017 -
9 April 2017

473,556 3,000 476,556

V. Dayile HIV/AIDS PM (including acting 
COO for July 2016)

1 April 2016 - 
31 March 2017

999,459 9,000 1,008,459

L. Jack Chief Operations Officer 1 April 2016 - 
30 June 2016

280,957 2,250 283,207

B. Mhlaba Strategic and Infrustructure 
Governance PM

1 April 2016 - 
31 March 2017

1,188,404 9,000 1,197,404

S. Hesjedal Knowledge and Information 
PM (including acting COO from 
August 2016 to March 2017)

1 April 2016 - 
31 March 2017

1,005,398 9,000 1,014,398

L. Mosana HRD and Economic Governance 
PM

1 April 2016 - 
31 March 2017

1,127,181 9,000 1,136,181

6,097,664 50,250 6,147,914

Key management personnel are subject to written employment agreements. The employment agreements regulate 
duties, remuneration, allowances, restraints, leave and notice periods of these executives. None of these service 
contracts exceed 5 years.

Summary

Executive Directors 3,084,972 2,585,136

Key Management Personnel 5,876,382 6,147,914

Other Employees 23,504,837 20,791,485

32,466,191 29,524,535
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29. Risk management

Capital risk management

The entity is solely dependant on the grant from the Eastern Cape Office of the Premier.

Liquidity risk

The entity receives a grant from the Office of the Premier. All accruals and commitments in the 2017-2018 financial year 
were accounted for on the grant received for the same financial year, therefore the entity will meet its expected financial 
commitments. On going review of cash forms are done to ensure that payments and accruals do not exceed grant 
received.

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with 
major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Receivables from exchange transactions relate to amounts receivable from the Sanlam Ltd. Management evaluated 
credit risk relating to debtors on an ongoing basis. If debtors are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, 
if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its 
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in 
accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

Interest rate risk

As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, other than cash and cash equivalents, the entity’s income and 
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
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30. Prior period errors

Error 1:

In terms of paragraph .88 of GRAP 31: An entity shall assess whether the useful life of an intangible asset is finite or

indefinite and, if finite, the length of, or number of production or similar units constituting, that useful life. An intangible 
asset shall be regarded by the entity as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant 
factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for, or 
provide service potential to, the entity.

The entity had not accurately considered all the factors in determining the useful life of the intangible assets - computer 
software. Based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the 
asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for, or provide service potential to, the entity. Therefore the software 
systems should have been classified as indefinite useful life assets instead of intangibles with a definite useful life. 
ECSECC pays an annual licence fee for these software systems to ensure the system remains up to date and at its 
current service potential. At year end, the entity has not identified any signs of impairment for these systems.

Error 2:

The entity had not accounted for interest due on the rental deposit for the office building. This has been corrected in the 
current financial year with retrospective restatement.

Error 3:

The leave pay provision was included in the calculation of payments for employee costs on the cash flow statement. This 
is a non cash flow therefore has been corrected.

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position Error No.

Intangible assets - accumulated amortization computer software 1 - 255,647

Opening Accumulated Surplus - computer software 1 - (172,933)

Opening Accumulated Surplus - interest on deposit 2 - (15,004)

Rental deposit 2 - 33,776

- 101,486

Statement of Financial Performance

Operating expenses (Amortization - computer software) 1 - (82,714)

Investment revenue (Interest on deposit) 2 - (18,772)

- (101,486)

Cash flow statement

Cash flow from operating activities

Suppliers 2 - (18,772)

Interest income 2 - 18,772

Employee costs 3 3,810

Suppliers 3 (3,810)
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Restated*

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services 3,725,001 391,666

Interest received - investment 18 407,079 265,468

Dividends received 18 4,986 4,607

Total revenue from exchange transactions 4,137,066 661,741

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 15 40,002,760 39,196,275

Total revenue 44,139,826 39,858,016

Expenditure

Employee related costs 23 (32,466,191) (29,524,535)

Depreciation and amortisation (885,506) (847,774)

Finance costs 19 (10,510) (25,573)

Lease rentals on operating lease (2,461,039) (2,461,038)

Repairs and maintenance (18,596) (10,116)

General Expenses 22 (8,609,027) (6,279,578)

Total expenditure (44,450,869) (39,148,614)

Operating (deficit) surplus 17 (311,043) 709,402

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities 12,093 51,613

Fair value adjustments 38,532 (2,407)

50,625 49,206

(Deficit) surplus for the year (260,418) 758,608

*See Note 30
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